
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

WARRENTON PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting | May 11, 2023 | 6:00pm 

Warrenton City Hall Commission Chambers | 225 S Main Avenue, Warrenton, OR 97146 

***The meeting will be broadcast via Zoom at the following link*** 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89594092173?pwd=VG5sMFFTVExqTWl1dXVXSTBFbWw2UT09 

Meeting ID: 851 4280 5492 | Passcode: 12345 | Dial in number: 253-215-8782 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
2. ATTENDANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission Regular Minutes – 4.13.23 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, anyone wishing to address the Planning Commission concerning items of interest may do so. The 
person addressing the Planning Commission must complete a Public Comment Card and submit it to the 
Secretary prior to the meeting. All comments will be addressed to the whole Planning Commission and limited 
to 3 minutes per person. Public Comments may also be submitted by email to the Secretary, 
rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us, no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. The Planning Commission 
reserves the right to delay any action, if required, until such time as they are fully informed on a matter. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING  
A. Wireless Communication Facility in Fort Stevens State Park CUP-23-2 
B. Expansion of Non-Conforming Use V-23-2 
C. Contractors Shop in the CMU zone CUP-23-1 (Postponed until June 8, 2023 Meeting) 

 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS - None 

 
7. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Portland State University Land Buildability Report (Approximate time: 7:00 pm) 
B. Mini Warehouse Development Code Amendment 
C. Shipping Container Draft Ordinance 

 
8. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next Regular Meeting: June 8, 2023 

 
Warrenton City Hall is accessible to the disabled. An interpreter for the hearing impaired may be requested under the terms of ORS 192.630 by 
contacting Dawne Shaw, City Recorder, at 503-861-0823 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so appropriate assistance can be provided. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89594092173?pwd=VG5sMFFTVExqTWl1dXVXSTBFbWw2UT09
mailto:rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us


MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.13.23 

Page: 1 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 

April 13, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

Warrenton City Hall - Commission Chambers 

225 S. Main 

Warrenton, OR 97146

Chair Hayward called the meeting to order at 5:59 p.m. Commissioner Bridgens led the public in 

the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Commissioners Present: Kevin Swanson, Christine Bridgens, Chris Hayward, Mike Moha, 

Jessica Sollaccio, Karin Hopper, and Lylla Gaebel 

Staff Present: Planning Director Jay Blake and Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 3.11.23

Chair Hayward noted a correction to the minutes. He voted against the mini storage motion. It 

did not pass unanimously. The correction was made. 

Commissioner Gaebel made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected. Motion was 

seconded and passed unanimously.  

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–aye; Moha-aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; 

Gaebel – aye  

4. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – None

5. PUBLC HEARINGS

Staff requested to switch items 5.B and 5.C. Chair Hayward noted the change. 

A. Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1 at 590 Seventh Ave (tax lot 81008AA05000)

Chair Hayward opened the public hearing. He read the public hearing script outlining the hearing 

procedure and applicable criteria. There were no ex-parte contacts, biases, or conflicts of interest 

declared. Commissioners Hayward and Bridgens visited the subject site. Planning Technician 

Rebecca Sprengeler presented a staff report on the wetland hardship variance. The applicant is 

Don Peck who wants to develop 590 Seventh Ave with a new single-family dwelling within a 

portion of a locally significant wetland boundary. The findings were that the application 

complied with the applicable code. There was concern from public comments received about 

exceeding the minimum necessary impact on the wetlands based on the garage size being 

significantly larger than others in the neighborhood. Staff presented a neighborhood analysis 

comparing average garage and dwelling sizes. The staff report also listed two conditions of 

3.A

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 2 of 65



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.13.23 

Page: 2 

approval. Another concern from the public was the potential for negative impacts on the 

privately maintained Seventh Court. Staff suggested a third condition of approval to prohibit 

access to Seventh Court by construction vehicles. Commissioner Moha asked if there was a 

house on the property before. Ms. Sprengeler confirmed. Commissioner Swanson asked if the 

dwelling would be a long or short-term rental. Ms. Sprengeler responded that the applicant will 

clarify but the city could permit either. Commissioner Gaebel asked if the proposed garage 

square footage is greater than the dwelling. Ms. Sprengeler confirmed and noted the reason for 

the size is for personal boat storage. Mr. Peck clarified that the garage is at ground level and 

attached.  

 

Don Peck explained the size of the garage is for indoor boat storage. He would prefer to store the 

boat inside unlike surrounding properties that have temporary structures for exterior boat storage. 

Chair Hayward asked for clarification on the layout. Mr. Peck clarified that the total building 

footprint is 78’ x 50’. The first level will have a dwelling space and a garage. He has owned the 

property for about 6 or 7 months. They have begun the process for a wetland delineation and will 

continue with State permits depending on city variance approval. Commissioner Bridgens asked 

about addressing stormwater runoff. The applicant noted the intent is to create a detention ditch 

to recreate filled wetlands on the South side of the property. There was concern about a lack of 

maintenance on the drainage ditch along Seventh Ave. The applicant noted the city standards 

require the property owner to retain the stormwater on-site. The design will be engineered to 

address the additional impervious surface but will move forward depending on this approval to 

avoid unnecessary financial investment. Discussion continued about photos submitted showing 

water ponding on the property. Commissioner Bridgens asked about the material and amount of 

fill. Mr. Peck clarified that it will be up to the engineer. The highest end of the property is at 

elevation 50’, while the adjacent property is at 51’. Discussion about the garage size being 

necessary for boat storage continued. 

 

Lisa Halicki spoke in opposition noting concerns about stormwater runoff. She submitted two 

public comment documents including site photos with standing water. She noted concerns about 

the size of the garage, noting the staff neighborhood analysis. She would be interested to know 

the year the original house was built and the laws in place at that time. There was a brief 

discussion about the Department of State Lands removal-fill permit process.  

 

Mr. Peck responded to Ms. Halicki’s comments explaining that he will not be able to develop 

unless stormwater is retained onsite. This will be designed by an engineer and will be a condition 

of approval.  

 

There being no further comments, Chair Hayward closed the public hearing.  

 

Commissioner Moha had no issues with the variance; no objection to the size of the garage 

because it meets the zoning development standards. He feels the proposed condition related to 

access via tax lot Seventh Court is not necessary. Commissioner Bridges asked for more 

information about COA #2. Mr. Blake suggested changing the condition to state that “the 

applicant will provide a stormwater management plan that accomplished no additional runoff 

onto adjoining properties.” Commissioner Swanson asked for clarification about the order of 

approval from the city to the state. Mr. Blake explained the reason he suggested the applicant get 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 3 of 65



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.13.23 

Page: 3 

approval from the city before going to the state is to save funds that would be used for 

engineering. Commissioner Hopper feels the State will have requirements for feasibility that will 

need to be addressed; the variance would allow him to work through the next steps of state 

permits and engineering.  

 

Commissioner Moha made the motion to approve Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1 at 

590 Seventh Ave in Hammond on tax lot 81008AA05000 for the construction of a new 

single-family dwelling. This approval is subject to findings of fact and conditions of 

approval in the staff report dated April 13, 2023, and the submittals and testimony at this 

meeting. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.  

 

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–aye; Moha-aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; 

Gaebel – aye  

 

C.  Annexation ANX-23-1  

B. Comprehensive Plan Amendment CP-23-1  

 

Chair Hayward opened the public hearing on ANX-23-1 and CP-23-1. He read the public 

hearing script outlining the hearing procedure and applicable criteria. There were no ex-parte 

contacts, biases, or conflicts of interest declared. 

 

Mr. Blake presented a staff report on the annexation proposal. There were some errors made 

during the Warrenton and Hammond merger. The comprehensive plan merger excluded a portion 

of land near the Hammond Marina and Seafarer’s Park that was previously inside the city limits 

and is no longer. This causes challenges for police enforcement. He explained the approval 

process: Department of Land Conservation and Development, Planning Commission, County 

Planning Commission, County Board, and finally City Commission. Mr. Blake presented the 

findings of fact and proposed conditions of approval from the staff report. The proposed zoning 

for the park portion of the property will be OSI, the other portion would be the same as the rest 

of the marina, RC.  

 

Mr. Blake also presented a staff report for the urban growth boundary (UGB) comprehensive 

plan amendment to correct another related error from the merger of the two comprehensive 

plans. He noted the state is only in favor of urban growth boundary expansion because of the 

unique situation. A portion of the UGB area is in Fort Stevens. The Town of Hammond proposed 

this be urbanized camping. There are no immediate plans for development by the State Park. Mr. 

Blake suggested this land be used for a future transfer of development rights. Mr. Blake 

reviewed the findings of fact and conditions of approval. He noted Ordinances 1261 and 1262 for 

consideration. Commissioner Swanson asked about the downside to annexing. Mr. Blake does 

not see any downsides. Current enforcement in the area adjacent to the Hammond Marina is 

under the jurisdiction of the County Sheriff’s office. Mr. Blake noted the Warrenton Police 

Department requested this move forward to allow enforcement of city ordinances.  

 

Chair Hayward asked about correspondence on the application. There has been no written 

correspondence. There was a phone call from an adjoining property owner. The DLCD did not 

have any concerns with the application. Chair Hayward called for public testimony. No one 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 4 of 65



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.13.23 

Page: 4 

spoke in favor, opposition, or neutral on the proposal. Commissioner Sollaccio asked about the 

potential for revenue-generating camping on the westerly property. Mr. Blake confirmed that 

short-term rentals do generate revenue for the city. Commissioner Sollaccio suggested adding an 

appendix to Ordinance 1262 with the PSU student matrix for transparency. Mr. Blake noted this 

would be added before it reaches the City Commission. There was a brief discussion about 

current camping in Seafarer’s Park.  

 

There being no further comments, Chair Hayward closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Gaebel moved that based on the findings of fact contained in the staff memo 

dated April 13, 2023, public testimony, and deliberations by the Warrenton Planning 

Commission, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the draft Ordinance 1261 

annexing approximately 13.1 acres of land to the City of Warrenton and zoning the 

property Open Space Institutional (OSI) and Recreational Commercial (RC). Motion was 

seconded and passed unanimously. 

 

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–aye; Moha-aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; 

Gaebel – aye  

 

Commission Gaebel made the motion to amend the previous motion to include the 

conditions of approval as outlined by staff. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.  

 

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–aye; Moha-aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; 

Gaebel – aye  

 

Commissioner Gaebel made the motion that based on the findings of fact contained in the 

staff memo dated April 13, 2023, public testimony, and deliberations by the Warrenton 

Planning Commission, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the draft 

Ordinance 1262 amending the City of Warrenton Comprehensive Plan correcting the 

urban grown boundary and adding related text and recommended zoning districts, subject 

to the conditions of approval outlined by staff. Motion was seconded and passed 

unanimously.  

 

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–aye; Moha-aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; 

Gaebel – aye  

 

6. BUSINESS ITEMS – None 

 

7.  DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 

A. Draft mini storage ordinance 

 

Mr. Blake presented a draft ordinance to create a cap on the number of mini storage units in the 

city. This is based on directions from the Planning Commission at the last meeting. He presented 

an analysis for mini storage units in the whole county. There are more in Warrenton than the rest 

of the County combined. There is a potential mini storage development coming forward. Mr. 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 5 of 65



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.13.23 

Page: 5 

Blake presented a draft ordinance to establish a mini storage unit cap per capita and requested 

direction from the Planning Commission. The legal staff has reviewed the ordinance; there may 

be additional changes. He noted this would not impact established facilities. Damage to facilities 

is something that should be considered. Commissioner Swanson asked about the national 

average for units per capita. Mr. Blake noted the information is from Clatsop County tax records. 

The tax revenue per acre for mini storage facilities is about half that of similar parcels developed 

with other uses. Warrenton is a city that needs to be careful in limiting revenue sources. Mr. 

Blake continued that mini storage facilities do not require city utilities; they can be on septic and 

well. There was a question about the need for fire suppression; it was determined that it would 

not be needed. It was also noted that mini storage facilities do not provide as many jobs as other 

allowed uses. Mr. Blake discussed the comprehensive plan’s emphasis on the creation of jobs 

and tax base with industrial land. Commissioner Hopper feels this is a time sensitive issue and 

Warrenton should not be known as the mini storage epicenter. Commissioner Gaebel is for a 

hearing. Chair Hayward feels a hearing would be good to hear both sides of the argument. He 

also noted Warrenton has a higher number of apartments than other cities. Commissioner 

Bridgens feels the best and highest use of the property should be considered. Commissioner 

Moha suggested the cap be different between commercial and industrial zoning. Commissioner 

Swanson would like a hearing to get into the details. Commissioner Sollaccio would like to hear 

from the current owners on their occupancy rate and employment history. Mr. Blake suggested a 

work session in May with the mini storage owners. Commissioner Sollaccio asked about the 

current design standards requiring a public amenity. It has been in place since 2019. Any facility 

built since then could be asked to describe their public amenities.  

 

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

Mr. Blake provided information about the Build-to-Rent concept that the Fort Pointe 

development is proposing and provided a status update. He presented information about the 

importance of “placemaking.” A NW Warrenton Dr rezone will come back. In the past, meetings 

with no agenda items were cancelled, however the Planning Commission is required to meet 

monthly. Moving forward meetings with minutes-only agendas can be held virtually. Portland 

State University students will be at the library for public input. Discussion followed about Fort 

Pointe. There will be more units than previously proposed. Black Diamond, WA suggested an 

incremental traffic study. There is concern about the lack of open space and recreation 

opportunities. The developer is required to make sewer and water improvements.  

 

Chair Hayward asked for an update on the restaurant in North Coast Shops. Mr. Blake noted 

Chipotle and Mod Pizza have their permits and are under construction.  

 

Commissioner Sollaccio asked about incentives to get businesses into Warrenton. Mr. Blake 

noted the city does not have an economic development arm. Clatsop Economic Development 

Resources (CEDR) is a useful resource for this. Chair Hayward noted rebuilds or expansions for 

small businesses are challenging and expensive. Chair Sollaccio noted the need for grants. Mr. 

Blake explained previous experience with urban renewal and tax incentives. The best way to 

grow business is from within the city. Mr. Blake noted staff are working to improve the 

development process. Commissioner Gaebel noted Craft 3 is another resource.  

 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 6 of 65



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 4.13.23 

Page: 6 

There being no further business, Chair Hayward adjourned the meeting at 8:05 p.m.  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

___________________________ 

ATTEST:      Chris Hayward, Chair 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca Sprengeler, Secretary 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 7 of 65



City of Warrenton
Planning Department
225 S Main Avenue • P.O. Box 250 • Warrenton. OR 97146
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351

STAFF REPORT
TO: Warrenton Planning Commissi(

FROM: Jay Blake/ Planning Directoj

DATE: May II/ 2023
SUBJ: Review of Conditional Use Permit for the Construction of a Wireless

Communications Tower

Application CUP 23-02
Applicant: New Cingular Wireless (AT&T)
Subject Property: 421 NW Ridge Road/ Hammond (Fort Sfcevens State Park

Parcel Number: 810170003901 (Portion)

Timelines:

• Application Submittal: March 17, 2023

• The application was deemed complete by staff on April 17, 2023.

• Notice of hearing was prepared and mailed on .

• The 120 Day Review period expires on August 15, 2023.

BACKGROUND:

The application is for a conditional use permit allowing the construction of a 150 foot

wireless communication facility (WCF) and related maintenance and security

improvements on property within Fort Stevens State Park.

The applicant has submitted the following documents in support of the application:

• Application Forms

• Project Narrative

• Statement of Code Compliance for Section 16.148

• Letter of Agreement with Oregon State Parks

• RF Emission Compliance Report

• Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment

• Design Hazards Report

5.A

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 8 of 65



CUP 23-02 Wireless Communications Facility
New Cinguiar/Oregon Department of Parks.
Staff Report - Page: 2

• FCC License

• Photo Simulations (Visibility Report)
• Site Justification Report

• FAA Non-hazards Report

• Construction Plan Set

Each item is available for public review and on-line at the City of Warrenton Planning

Department website. If you want full copies of the documents/ please contact the

Planning Office.

The following sections of the Warrenton Municipal Development Code apply to this

application:

• Section 16.52 Open Space Institutional (OSI) Zoning District

• Section 16.148 Wireless Communications Facilities

• Section 16.208.050 Type III Procedures (Quasi-Judicial)

• Section 16.220 Conditional Use Permits

Findings Related to the Site:

1. The State of Oregon Parks and Recreation Department owns the land upon

which the request is being made. They have signed off on the application.

2. The subject property is currently zoned both Open Space Institutional (OSI) and

A-5 (Lake and Freshwater Wetland). The location of the project is on upland

areas zoned OSI which allows the proposed use by conditional use permit

process. No construction will occur in the A-5 zoning area.

3. The applicant submitted site location reports that justify the location based on a

gap in coverage in the vicinity.

4. The applicant is leasing the 50/x50/ area for the construction and maintenance of

theWCP.

5. Access to the site will be through a private road with access to Peter Iredale Road

through the camping areas for Fort Stevens State Park.

6. The location of the tower is approximately 1272 feet from the Ridge Road right-

of-way.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 9 of 65



CUP 23-02 Wireless Communications Facility
New Cinguiar/Oregon Department of Parks.
Staff Report - Page: 3

7. No municipal utilities will serve the proposed tower. A private generator will be

located within the fenced lease area

'-</

(fi*Tltf,1HVAEU
tKAR.SH C! (»i *tt t FAEI U.Mt.

{f}Mti??-r)[M'-i!-ieusji.tu
(1 IM 10 Ft.)

(TJ Mit na'-(r tAU
iu-Sf<otc<.t<p)u?f!taciiDfi

PROPOSED AT&T
PROJECT AREA

REFER TO ENLARGED SETE PLAN £<
COMPOUND PLAN ON SHEET A-2

TtAHI';.t.>,IH *17tW
lQ<:*KittOFJfi*Ttl
t^ttt.O.C \

Q^}
.^

—PAfCEUD:
81017CCOS9&0

ZONED: 051

PARCEL I D:
810180C00101
ZONED: OS!

PARCEL !D:
810V0003904

ZONED: OSI

\ ...-"" \

Findings Related to Section 16.52 Open Space Institutional (OSI) Zoning

8. The subject parcel is zoned both OSI and A5. However/ the exact location of the

proposed tower is zoned OSI.

9. The OSI zoning district is designed to allow for public and private recreational

uses within the community and ancillary uses to support recreation. The

property in general will remain recreational in natoe. The proposed use is

authorized as a conditionally permitted use that requires a Type III review

process.

10. The project meets lot coverage requirements. WCF towers are exempt from

height restrictions. All development standards are met.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 10 of 65



CUP 23-02 Wireless Communications Facility
New Cinguiar/Oregon Department of Parks.
Staff Report - Page: 4

Findings Related to Section 16.148 Wireless Communications Facilities:

11. Section 16.148.030 states that WCF are allowed in the OSI zoning district by

conditional use permit.

12. The applicant provided documentation that a tower is needed to fill m a gap of

coverage.

13. The applicant submitted the required visual study that indicates that the tower is

not visible from off-site locations.

14. The WCF is designed for co-location.

15. The WCF meets a public need for consistent communication in the western part

of the community.

16. The WCF will meet all design and construction criteria.

17. The WCF meets FAA non-hazard guidelines.

18. Because the facility is not visible from off the subject parcel/ no landscaping plan

is required by the City. The State of Oregon is not requesting any specific

landscaping for around the site.

19. Staff finds that the proposal meets all review criteria outlined in Section 16.148.

20. The applicant submitted all required documentation

Findings Related to Section 16.208.050 Type III Procedures:

21. The applicant submitted all required documentation/ application forms and paid

the required fees.

22. All public notices were mailed and published pursuant to Section 16.208.050 of

the Warrenton Municipal Code.

23. Written and verbal public comments will be added to the record.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 11 of 65



CUP 23-02 Wireless Communications Facility
New Cingular/Oregon Department of Parks.
Staff Report - Page: 5

Findings Related to Section 16.220 Conditional Use Permits:

The Warrenton Development Code establishes the following criteria for the Planning

Commission to use in reviewing CUP requests:

A. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan.
B. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed use

are such that the development will be compatible with, and have a minimal
impact on, surrounding properties.

C. The use will not generate excessive traffic, when compared to traffic
generated by uses permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity
to accommodate the traffic generated.

D. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed
use.

E. The site's physical characteristics, in terms of topography, soils and other
pertinent considerations, are appropriate for the use.

F. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use. The site
layout has been designed to provide for appropriate access points, on-site
drives, public areas, loading areas, storage facilities, setbacks and buffers,
utilities or other facilities which are required by City ordinances or desired by
the applicant.

G. The use is appropriate at the proposed location. Several factors which
should be considered in determining whether or not the use is appropriate
include: accessibility for users (such as customers and employees);
availability of similar existing uses; availability of other appropriately zoned
sites; and the desirability of other suitably zoned sites for the intended use.

24. Staff find that the request is consistent with goals in the Warrenton

Comprehensive plan related to public facilities. The proposed use is

conditionally permitted and meets the design criteria for WCF projects.

25. The proposed WCF is located away from residential zones/uses and will be

generally compatible with the large areas of undeveloped land associated with

Fort Steven State Park.

26. The site will generate limited impacts on area traffic and no impacts on

municipal utility facilities in the area.

27. The project does not impact any local or jurisdictional wetlands/ or other natural

features. It will not be visible from off of the subject property.

Other General Findings:

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 12 of 65



CUP 23-02 Wireless Communications Facility
New Cingular/Oregon Department of Parks.
Staff Report - Page: 6

28. Public agencies experience commurucations gaps in the western portion of the

City of Warrenton. There is interest in potentially co-locating a public

repeater/antenna in the area.

29. The plans do not currently indicate the extent of any tree clearing on the site.

The construction location is in an area with other maintenance buildings.

Recommended Action:

I move approval of the Conditional Use Permit (CUP 23-02) for New

Cingnlar Wireless allozmng constniction of a 150-foot monopole zvireless

communication facility tozver zi?ith a 5-foot light extension on parcel

number 810170003901. The approval is based on the application^ project

snbmittals^ public testimony, and findings of fact inchided in the M-ay II/

2023 staff memo.
I

Tfie approval is subject to the follozuing conditions of approval:

1. The construction zuill meet all applicable construction standards as

shozun on the plan set.

2. The applicant zuill obtain all required pennits for the project

including^ but not limited to electrical permits from Clatsop Cozmty.

3. The site zvill be enclosed by a 6-foot security fence zvith barbed-zuire

to prevent anazithorized access to the facility,

4. Prior to initiating construction, the applicant zvill present tree

clearing plans szirroimding the construction zone to tHe Warrenton

Fire Chief to ensure that adequate fire prevention access can occur.

5. The Clatsop County and City ofWanenton public safety

departments should be offered a co-location opportunity on the

facility.

6. The Oregon Parks Department zvill have final azithonty to approve

access road construction and screening of the site.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 13 of 65



City ofWarrcnton
Planning and Building Department

PO Box 250
Warrenton/ Oregon 97146

503-861-0920

FILE it
OFFICE USE ONLY

FEE $1.000

ZONING DISTRICT

RECEIPT #

DATE RECEIVED

Conditional Use Application

I. Property

Address: ^^^ Peter Iredale Road (State Park) Cross Street

Assessor's Parcel No.: Twp_8N, RnglOW, Section_[7^ Tax Lot 810970003901

II. Applicant

Applicant: J51P, on behalf of AT&T (Phillip Kitzes) phone: 206.227.7445

Mailing Address: 23035 SE 263rd Street, Maple Valley, WA 98038 (remote)

E-Mail Address: pkitzes@j5ip.com

Date 3.16.23Applicant's Signature:.w/f/^f

III. Owner
Owner: Oregon Parks and Recreation Department phone:

Mailing Address: _725 Summer Street #C, Salem, OR 97301

E-mail Address: justin.parker@oprd.oregon.gov

Owner's Signature:

IV. Describe the Proposed Use
A new wireless facility that includes a 150-foot monopole (collocation for at least 3 other

_camers); antennas, radios, GPS, and other ancillary equipment within a 50'x50' secured

leased area. There will be a backup generator to be used during emergencies only^
(Please see Project Narrative and Statement of Compliance.)

conditional use application
October 2018

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 14 of 65



Six Conditional Use Criteria-Provide Written Responses to Each One-Section 16.220

1. The proposed use is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan.

Please see Attachment 2 - Statement of Compliance.

2. The location/ size and design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are such that the

development will be compatible with/ and have a minimal impact on surrounding properties.

Please see Attachment 2 - Statement of Compliance.

3. The use will not generate excessive traffic/ when compared to traffic generated by uses

permitted outright, and adjacent streets have the capacity to accommodate the traffic generated.

,Pjease_see Attachment 2 - Statementgf Compliance,

4. Public facilities and services are adequate to accommodate the proposed use.

Please see Attachment 2 - Statement of Compliance.

5. The site's physical characteristics, En term of topography/ soiis and other pertinent

considerations are, are appropriate for the use.

J31ease see Attach rnenl^ - Stateme^

6. The site has an adequate area to accommodate the proposed use. The site layout has been

designed to provide for the buiiding, parking, landscaping, driveway, on-site circulation/ public

areas/ loading areas/ storage facilities, setbacks, buffers, and utilities which are required by City

ordinances.

EIjsase see Attachment^ " StatemenlolCpmpi|an,ce,_

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff has determined that
the application is completely tilled out and the site plan requirements have been

completed and a copy of the deed.

conditional use application
October 2018

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 15 of 65



TYPE III - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
Wireless Communications Facility Project Narrative

(AT&T: CT69 Fort Stevens)

Submitted to the City of Warrenton

Planning & Building Department
Submitted: March 16, 2023

Applicant: New Cingular Wireless PCS/ LLC ("AT&T")
19801 SW 72nd Ave. Suite 200

Tualatin, OR 97062

Representative: J5 Infrastructure Partners

23035 SE 263rd Street (Remote)

Maple Valley/WA 98038

Contact: Phillip Kitzes / 206.227.7445

pkitzes@J5ip.com

Property Owner: Oregon Parks & Recreation Department

725 Summer Street/ #C

Salem/OR 97301

Project Address: 421 NW Ridge Road

Hammond/OR 97121

Description & Tax Lot: GPS Coordinates: 46.18016, -123.96050

Parcel No.810170003901

Zoning Classification: Open Space and Institutional (OSI)

J5 Infrastructure is submitting this application on behalf of New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC ("AT&T"]

1. PROJECT OVERVIEW
AT&T is proposing to install a new wireless communications facility ("WCF" or "facility"), CT69 Fort

Stevens site, at the abovementioned address. The proposal includes a new 150-foot monopole to

meets AT&T s coverage objectives (providing outdoor, in vehicle, and in-building coverage) within a

geographic area in high demand.

The facility will include (6) panel antennas, and the overall height will be 150;-0" (plus a 5' lightning

rod). All ground equipment will be within a secured fenced 50 x50 (2,500 SF) lease area and there

wiil be an emergency backup generator within the compound. Per the Pre-Application meeting held

January 4 , Oregon Parks Department is not requiring landscaping.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 16 of 65



CT69 Fort Stevens AT&T Wireless

AT&T intends for its application of the proposed WCF to include the following documents (collectively,
"AT&T'S Application"}:

• Attachment 1 - Project Narrative (this document)

• Attachment 2 ~ Statement of Code Compliance

• Attachment 3 - WCF CUP Application (signed)

• Attachment 4 ~ Owner s Letter of Authorization

• Attachment 5 - NIER Report

• Attachment 6 - Environmental Phase 1
» Attachment 7 - ASCE Hazards Report:

• Attachment 8 - FCC License

« Attachment 9 - Photo-Simulations

• Attachment 10 - RF Justification

• Attachment 11 - ATT ComplEancy Statement

• Attachment 12 - FAA/ODA Obstruction Evaluation Letter

• Attachment 13 - Land Use Plan Set

As shown in AT&Ts Application/ AT&Ts proposal meets the City of Warrenton's criteria for siting new

wireless communications facilities and complies with all other applicable county/ state, and federal

regulations. AT&T s proposal is also the least intrusive means of meeting AT&T s service objective.

Accordingly, AT&T respectfully requests that Walla Walia approve this project as proposed.

Please Note: The responses and information included in this document are intended to support and

supplement this application request. All references to Attachments in this Project Narrative and the

Statement of Code Compliance are in reference to the attachments included as part of AT&T'S Application.

2. PROPOSED PROJECT DETAILS

Detailed information regarding the subject property and proposed lease area is included in
Attachment 13, LU Plan Set.

2.1. Subject property. The subject property of this proposal is located at 421 NW Ridge
Road in the City of Warrenton (the "Property") and is owned by the Oregon Parks and
Recreation Department. Access will come from a private road system that is directly

accessible to Peter Iredale Road. The site is zoned as Open Space & Institutional (OSi)
and is a public park. There are several buildings (cabins, yurts, etc.) aiong with parking

areas for public use. Most of the site is undeveloped with small lakes and wetlands with

native vegetation (trees, plants, etc.). The land is primarily flat (0-5%) with a ridge

traversing in a north and south direction.

2.1.2. Lease Area.

• The lease area is a 507>;50' (1,500 SF) compound (the "Lease Area"). There

is native vegetation (grasses and trees) in the westerly portion of the

underlying property—where the proposed facility is to be located. Some

vegetation is proposed to be removed (grasses, etc.) to install the pole,

ground equipment, and utilities.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 17 of 65



CT69 Fort Stevens AT&T Wireiess

• The lease area will be surrounded by a 6-0 chain link fence (privacy slats)

with a 1-foot barbed wire on top (security).

2.1.3. Access and Parking.

• Direct access is via the existing private drive from Peter Iredale Road.
2.1.4. Utilities.

• Power. Power wi!l be provided by the resident power company—either

Pacific Power or Columbia Rural Electric Association. AT&T s GCwiil install

a new meter base and will run conduit from the new meter base to the new

equipment. A bridge will be provided from the equipment to the antennas.

• Fiber. Fiberto the Facility will be provided via the local fiber purveyor.

• As this is an un-manned wireless communications facility/ no water, sewer/

orother utilities are required.

2.2. Wireless Facilities and Equipment.

Specifications of the facilities outlined below/ including a site plan, can be found in
Attachment 13 " Land Use Plan Set.

2.2.1. Antennas and accessory equipment. Three (3) sectors on top of the proposed

monopole will contain the following AT&T equipment;

• Six (6) panel antennas

• Twelve (12) remote radio head units (RRHs)

• Two (2) suppressors

• One (1) lightning rod

• All other associated and anciliary equipment

2.2.2. Ground equipment.

• Ground equipment includes:

• Two (2) Equipment cabinets

• Generator w/ concrete pad

• One (1) Cable Bridge

• One (1) GPS
• One(l)fibervault

• All associated and accessory equipment

* 6-foot chain-link fence with privacy slats + 1' of barbed wire (security).

2.3. Additional Details.

2.3.1. Landscaping. Not required.

2.3.2. Lighting. The facility will not be artificially illuminated, and no lighting is required
pursuant to state or federal authorities.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 18 of 65



CT69 Fort Stevens AT&T Wireless

3. NETWORK COVERAGE AND SERVICES.

3.1 Overview—AT&T 4G LTE. AT&T is upgrading and expanding its wireless communications

network throughout the Pacific Northwest. LTE stands for "Long Term Evolution." This

acronym refers to the ongoing process of improving wireless technology standards with

speeds up to ten times faster than 3G. LTE technology is the next step in increasing

broadband speeds to meet the demands of uses and the variety of content accessed over

mobile networks.

Upon completion of this update, AT&T will operate a state-of-the-art digital network of

wireless communications facilities throughout the proposed coverage area as part of its

nationwide wireless communications network.

The new Facility will allow for uninterrupted wireless service in the targeted service area

with fewer dropped calls/ improved call quality, and improved access to additional

wireless services that the public now demands. This includes emergency 911 calls within

the area.

3.2. Coverage Objectives.

The primary objective of the proposed new Facility is to fill a significant coverage gap in

the City of Warrenton area. Wireless demand is growing, and robust wireless networks

are essential to businesses and residences throughout Warrenton. (Approximately 70%

of all U.S. households are wireless only.1) Currently, portions in and around Walla Walla

East have minimal to no 4G voice service. Please refer to Attachment 10 - RF Justification.

The proposed new facility will provide coverage to the Warrenton area, including Fort

Stevens State Park and surrounding communities. The site for the new facility is in the

center of the coverage gap and will provide sufficient continuous and uninterrupted

outdoor, in vehicle, and in building wireless sen/ice within the Targeted Service Area/

resulting in fewer dropped caiis, improved call quality/ and improved access to additional

wireless services the public now demands (this includes emergency 911 calls).

In addition to the coverage gap in the center of the Targeted Service Area, the areas on

the outer edges of the Service Area have existing AT&T coverage, which is at or near its

capacity. As such/ the current coverage in those areas is insufficient for the volume of

traffic (i.e. though this area already has AT&T coverage, additional capacity is needed to

service the volume of users).

3.3.1 FirstNet

In addition to providing customers with reliable coverage, fast speeds, and excellent

quality/ the proposed project will include facilities to support the Nationwide Public

Per the National Center for Health Statistics, Wireless Substitution: Early ReSease of Estimates from the National Health

Interview Survey, January-June 2022, Reieased December 2022

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 19 of 65



CT69 Fort Stevens AT&T Wireless

Safety Broadband Network ("FirstNet").2 In its partnership with the First Responder

Network Authority, AT&T is responsible for building, maintaining, and upgrading

the FirstNet network for the next 25 years, in order to support RrstNet, AT&T is

upgrading its existing wireless sites and building new wireless facilities throughout

Washington and the United States. FirstNet Built with AT&T is designed to be

reliable, functional, safe, and secure/ and it will provide optimal ievels of

operational capacity at all times. As of January 1, 2018, FirstNet users have access

to FirstNet on all AT&T commercial LTE bands/ allowing them to also benefit from

AT&Ts overall improvements to its commercial network.

FirstNet s benefits include:

• Always on, 24x7 priority and preemption for First Responders across data

and voice communications.

• A physically separate and highly secure network core that is fully dedicated

to FirstNet - utilizing end to end encryption and keeping public safety and

emergency management traffic separate from commercial traffic; and

• A dedicated fleet of portable network deployable assets to support first

responder and emergency manager connectivity for planned events,

emergencies, in extremis, and other mission requirements.

4. APPLICABLE LAW

4.1. Local Codes. Pursuant to the Warrenton Municipal Code, new WCF support towers in the

OSi zone are subjectto a Type II! Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Approval and must comply
with the criteria in WMC Chapter 16.220. See Attachment 11 - Statement of Code

Compliance for AT&Ts demonstration of compliance with the applicable code.

4.2. Federal law. Federal law/ primarily found in the Telecommunications Act of 1996

("Telecom Act") acknowledges a local jurisdiction's zoning authority over proposed

wireless facilities but limits the exercise of that authority in several important ways.

4.2.1. Local jurisdictions may not materially limit or inhibit. The Telecom Act prohibit

a local jurisdiction from taking any action on a wireless siting permit that

"prohibit[s] or [has] the effect of prohibiting the provision of personal wireless

services/' 47 U.S.C. §332(c)(7)(B)(i)(ii). According to the Federal

Communications Commission ("FCC") Order adopted in September 20183, a local

2 https://www.firstnet.gov

Accelerating Wireless and Wireline Broadband Deployment by Removing Barriers to Infrastructure Investment, Declaratory

Ruling and Third Report and Order, WT Docket No. 17-79, WC Docket No. 17-84 (rel. Sept. 27, 2018); 83 Fed. Reg.51867
(Oct. 15,2018) ("FCC Order").

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 20 of 65



CT69 Fort Stevens AT&T Wireless

jurisdiction's action has the effect of prohibiting the proviso of wireless service

when it "materially limits or Inhibits the ability of any competitor or potential

competitor to compete in a fair and balanced legal and regulatory environment/'4

Under the FCC Order/ an applicant need not prove it has a significant gap in

coverage; it may demonstrate the need for a new wireless facility term of

adding capacity, updating to new technologies, and/or maintaining high quality

service.

While an applicant is no longer required to show a significant gap in service

coverage/ in the Ninth Circuit/ a local Jurisdiction dearly violates section

332(c)(7){B)(i)(ll) when it prevents a wireless carrier from using the least intrusive

means to fill a significant gap in service coverage. T-Mobite U.S.A., Inc. v. City of

Anacortes, 572 F.3d 987, 988 (9th Cir. 2009).

« Significant Gap. Reliable in-building coverage is now a necessity and every

community's expectation. Consistent with the abandonment of land line

telephones and reliance on onty wireless communications, federal courts now

recognize that a "significant gap" can exist based on inadequate in-building

coverage. See, e.g., T-Mobite Central LLC v. Unified Government of

Wyandotte County/Kansas City, 528 F. Supp. 2d 1128,1168-69 (D.Kan. 2007^,

affirmed in part, 546 F.3d 1299 (10th Cir. 2008); MetroPCS, Inc. v. City and

County of San Francisco, 2006 WL 1699580/ *1Q-11 (N.D. Cal. 2006). This

project will fill a significant gap in coverage.

• Least Intrusive Means. The least intrusive means standard "requires that the

provider "show that the manner in which it proposes to fili the significant gap

in service is the least intrusive on the values that the denia! sought to serve.'"

572 F.3d at 995, quoting MetroPCS, Inc. v. City of San Francisco, 400 F.3d 715,

734 (9th Cir. 2005). These values are reflected by the local code's preferences

and siting requirements.

4.2.2. Environmental and health effects prohibited from consideration. Also under the

Telecom Act, a Jurisdiction is prohibited from considering the environmental

effects of RF emissions (including health effects) of the proposed site if the site

will operate in compliance with federal regulations. 47 U.S.C. § 332(c)(7)(B){iv).

AT&T has included with this application a statement from its radio frequency

engineers demonstrating that the proposed facility will operate in accordance

with the Federal Communications Commission's RF emissions regulations. See

Attachment 10 - RF Justification Report.

4 Id. at 1)35
5 Id. at 11^34-42.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 21 of 65



CT69 Fort Stevens AT&T Wireless

Accordingly, this issue is preempted under federal law and any testimony or

documents introduced relating to the environmental or health effects of the

proposed site should be disregarded in this proceeding.

4.2.3. No discrimination amongst providers. Local Jurisdiction also may not discriminate

amongst providers of functionally equivalent services. 47 U.S.C. §

332(c)(7)(B)(i)(l). A jurisdiction must be able to provide plausible reasons for

disparate treatment of different providers' applications for similarly situated

facilities.

4.2.4. Shot Clock. Finally, the Telecom Act requires local jurisdictions to act upon

applications for wireless communications sites within a "reasonable" period of

time. 47 U.S.C. § 332(c)(7}(B)(ii). The FCC has issued a "Shot Clock" rule to

establish a deadline for the issuance of land use permits for wireless facilities. 47

C.F.R. § 1.6001, etseq. According to the Shot Clock rule, a reasonable period for

locai government to act on wireless applications is 90 days for a collocation

application, with "collocation" defined to include an attachment to any existing

structure regardless of whether it already supports wireless, and 150 days for all

other applications.

The Shot Clock applies to all authorizations required for siting a wireless facility^

including the building permit^ and all application notice and administrative

appeal periods. Pursuant to federal law, the reasonable time for review of

this application is 150 days.

Thank you for your time and consideration in the review of this request. Please fee! free to contact

me by phone (206.227.7445) or email (pkitzes@J5ip.com) if there are any questions or comments.

J5 INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS

P^lT^tfe^
PHILLIPKITZES
Project Manager

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 22 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

<g35 INFRASTRUCTURE

PAGE 1

^?0B[}H®C3C2)gC3gfi3(§&[I

46B10'48.47"N 123657'37.93"W '> 2017 GOOGLE MAPS

NORTHWEST ELEVATION (LOOKING SOUTHEAST)

Diidalmer; These photographic simulations have been provided to aid In vfsualidng how the propased wireless lelecommunfcalions fadlfty shown heicln woukf appenr If constnjdmt. White these rerrderinfls are nol on cxnd science, they have been prcpored diligently to accurately reflect dimensions. scate, depth, coloring,
texture, and other important elements In 1he proposed design Insofar as Ihn dlgltnl mBdium attows. Taken togMher with the engineering drawings and other matertab submitted wtlh the application, they are fair and reasonable visual depictions of how Ihe pmposcd site woukl appear.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 23 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

ÂINFRASTRUCTURE

PAGES

^^?
46°10'48.47"N 123B57'37.93"W .-.^OITGOOGLEMAPS

SOUTHEAST ELEVATION (LOOKING NORTHWEST)

Disdalmer; These photographic slmilatlans have been provtded 1o aid In vtsuaSzlng how the proposed wireless telecommunlcattoos ftdtlty shown herein would appear tt canstruded. While these rBndcrings an not »n exact science, they have been prepared diligently to aecurotety reflect dimenslans, scale, depth, wloring,
texturCi and other Important elements In 1he preposed design insofar as Ihe digital medium attows. Tak«n tooether with the engineering drawings and other materials submitted with the appttcallon, they are (air and reasonable visual dcplctloru of how the proposed stte would appear.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 24 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

^35 INFRASTRUCTURE

PAGES

A ^
^A;

03358 £5^QSG3SL
/^SSSSSSSS<SGQQ3iS3
'ogyyycaiscoGfitscfisg^s

'1^1

LOCATION ^y:w<fe^^^^feyJ^uch'5yui'i^^May.^BeUiy^
•?^ ^

^^w1^:

PROPOSED SOUTHEAST ELEVATION (LOOKING NORTHWEST)

Dlsdalmer These phoitographteslmulattons have been ptovUed to aU in visualizing hcwthc propMcd wlrBtnss tBtecommunlcatlons facility shown herein would appear If eonstnietM). VWille thwe renderings are not an exact science, they have been prepared diligently to accurately reflect dimensions, scale, depth, coloring,
texture, and other important elemsnts In the prepOMd dMlgo Insofar as the digital medium allows. Tliken together with (he engineering drawings and other materials submitted with the applicntinn, they an fair and reasonable visual deptetians of how the proposed site wouk) appear,

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 25 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

^35 INFRASTRUCTURE

PAGE 4

r6^

A ^
^V 46B10'48.47"N 123°57'37.93"W .'.ZGI?GOOGLEMAPS

Ca35?£fii©u'R9ffi@L
^Su@jSSaSQ<§GQV33S3
'0@£P^ KOSO GS@Ci)@l?®6@

NORTHWEST ELEVATION (LOOKING SOUTHEAST)

Disclaimer; These phntograpfilc simulations hsvc been provided to nki In vteuatlzing how the proposed wireless telocommunlcnlions (adllty shown herein would appear If eonttructcd. Whtte these renderings are not an exact science, Ihey have been prepared dlHgcntty to accurately reflect dimensions, scale, depth, colorinOi
texture, and other Important elements In Ihn praposed deitgn Insofar as the dlgHal medium afkiws. Taken togBther with the cnBllWtirlng drawings and other maleHats submitted wtlh the opplicatlon, Ihcy are fair and (easonable visual depictions of how the proposcit sMc would appear.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 26 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

/&35 INFRASTRUCTURE

PAGE 5

46<I10'48.47"N 123°57t37.93"W F^ITGOOGLEMAPS

NORTHWEST ELEVATION (LOOKING SOUTHEAST)

Disclaimer. These photographte slmulattons have beBfl provided to ak) in vlsunllzlna hew the proposed wlralcis tBlecommunicatlons fnclltty shown herein would nppnar If constructed. VWiile •Uioso renderings are not on exact science, they have been prepared diligently to accurately reftect dlmerttions, scale, depth, coloring,
texture, and other important elements In the propnwd dwlgn Insofar as the digital madlum allows. Taken together with the engineering dwwings •nd other matertali submitted with the application, they are fair and reasonable visual depletions of how Ihe proposwl stu: wouU appear.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 27 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

&35 INFRASTRUCTURE

PAGES

A 
4̂6<>10'48.4r'N 123B57'37.93"W • 201? GOOGLE MAPS

NORTHWEST ELEVATION (LOOKING SOUTHEAST)

Dlsdaimcr: These photoeraphlc slmulatlans havs been provided to aid In visualizing how the propos»d wireless lelecBrranuntcallom fadltty shown herein would appear If constmctod, WhHe these renderings am not an exact science, they ham been prepared diligently to accurately icncct dlmcnsiORS, scale, depth, colorino,
texture, and after Important elemnnte in the proposed design Insofar as the dlgitni medium altows. Taken together wtth the engineering drawlnos and alher maleriats submitlett with the application, Ihey are fair and reasonable visual depidions of how the proposed site would appear.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 28 of 65



at&t CT69 FORT STEVENS
NEWMONOPOLE

September 22, 2022

<g35 INFRASTRUCTURE

PAGE 7

A ^
LOCATION 46a10'48.47"N 123<>57'37.93"W nW7GOOG\jE«wps

SOUTHEAST ELEVATION (LOOKING NORTHWEST)

Disclaimer These photographic stmulattons have been provtdcd ta aid In visualizing how the proposed wireless telc communications fadltty shown heretn would appear If eonstfuctod. While these tenderings are not an exact setence, they have been prepared dillBcntty to aecumtely reflecl dimensions, scote, depth, coloring,
texture, and other iinporttnt demftnts in the proposed design Insofar as the digital medium allows. Taken tngether with the ertglneering dranrings and other materials submtttBd with the application, they are fair and reasonable visual depictions of how Ihc proposed site wouU appear.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 29 of 65



CODE COMPLIANCE
ALL W0>;>; AND MA7EE1AL5 SHALL BE PERFORMED AND [NS;AU.ED[N
ACCOTOAKlCE WITH THE CUltEENT EDITIONS OF THE FOU.OWINC
CODES
AS AOOmO tf Wf: lOCAt GOVERNINC AUIHOBniES. NOTHING IN
THESE PLAMSC TO BE COWTCUEO TO PERMIT WOBK N01
CONFOXMINC
70 THESE COOES.

SOIB INIEBNA'HONAt. BUILDING CODE WRH LOCM AMENOMENK
SOiaiNTEBNA'HONALFIPECODEIIFC:]
;OtelNIEENA71DNALENEIiC;YCONSEI;VA;IONCOOe
201'; OBEOON SIE'UCTURAt. IPECIALTf COOE

PROJECT TEAM

fBOJECT MANAGER;

NEWaNOUlARWieELESSPC;. JS INFtA^BUCIUBEPACTMEi
LIC r^aT') CONTACT: SAtAMITCHELL
weoi w wo wt.. STE. SOO [hWIL lamilehdlaiap.com
rUALMIH.WWd: PK;['>71|;B1-142:

WnssucswwM^asE

J; INFHASTtUCTUSE PACTNEFS
CONTACT: M1?I?^T EULINGTON
EMAIL; lclllnBtnn.alllp.cnm
PH; [TOn) ?H-1 W»

Prt [MB1 360.2717

.BINFCASreUCTUF'EPiUTNER:
CONTACT; FHILJF CtTIES
EMAIL pt;ltiai't|51p.com
W. [TOi) :;7.?'Ui

SITE INFORMATION
PBOPEfTfOWNEt:
OBECOM PACK; ANB BECtEAnOM OEPT
lOOPOEEIFmALBD
KAMMONO.C>t9?lai

JUCEOtCIION:
WIND 1.0AOS;

EXPOSURE CATEQOtY:
IEEMIC ! &H£:
FLOOO ;ONE
PA ec [LID «:
mpiiNC:
LATITUDE I MAO B31;

135 MPM (SECOND CUCT]

LON&ITUOE (WAO aai: .i:3.waMoo-
IMPEBVCUS SUPfACE: 12. SOO SO. FI.
BASE OF Pl?OPOSED;miC7Ui3E;±0'[±37^AM5LJ
TOP of reoroiEO :muciui>E;t]n;'|iiB7.<i;wsu

AUSsaBllQYBEOUmEMENI;; MCIUTYE AN UNUUNNED EOU1FMENI
SPACE NOT IWEMDED FOE HUMAN HAWIAnon AND OWLT RiEQUENTLT
VEITED BYMAIKTEHAHCE 1'EK.ONAL ACCE^IBILKY 1: NOTIIEOUItED PE
me TO 1 a. SECTION naM.t |EOUIPM£NI;;I>ACEJ

TOWER OWtlCR; AT1T
POWES AGENCY: PACIFIC POWE8
lElEFHONEAOENCY; NA
CFCU VEKIDM: FtNAL'1.0
OATE UPOATEO: 3/iy^tt;

f'eOF'EI^TUE^.ALpESCBEHON;

SEE ICHEOUirC" OF TITIE CEPOCT

AT&T
SITE NUMBER:
SITE NAME:
SITE TYPE:
ADDRESS:

PARCEL ID:

CT69
FORTSTEVENS
MONOPOLE/W1C
1675 PETER 1REDALE RD
WARRENTON, OR 97121
810170003901

VICINITY MAP LOCAL MAP

-•V

.-...?

GENERAL CONTRACTOR NOTES
DOUOIICAt.EDKAWINC:

IHCSEI>lAN;AEEFOtMATTEDTOeEFULLSI;EAT;<"X3i".CONreACIOf!;SHAH.V£tlPfAlL
PLANS AND E>!l';7]NC01MIN:ION;ANOCONDmON';ONTH£JOBS(IEANOSHAlL
IMMCDIA7ELY NOTIFY THE AtCKITECT/EMOINEEC IN WBmNO Of ANT DCCBEMMCIE; BEFOtE
PEOCEEDIMCWlIMIMCWOtKOCMATEBIMOBDEircQBBERE.PONSBLEFOBTHEWME.

GENERAL NOTES
1ME FACHITVCUNMAMNEO AND UOIFOBMUMANHABITisnON.^ TECHNICIAN WILlVSmilEim:
A; PIOUIPED FOR ROUIINE MAINIEHANCE.IHE ProjECTWItI. HOt ItEIULTIN AHYSICNIFICAtlI
DKTUIt8ANCEOI?EFFEerONOI;*]NAOE:NC>;*K[T*EY;EW8t;EBV][:E, FQrABI.EWA7EB.OR
TC*;H OC.P01A!. t; RE&UIRED AMD NO COMMERCIAIIICNA&E E PI>OPO:£0.

STATEMENTS

S'leUCTUtAI.ANAl.YSKISNOTwn'NINTHESCOPEClFWOKCONIANEOIMmEOI^WNCSSn.
FOItANALY'.BOFEXETIhlCANB/OltPimPOSEOCOMPQUENIS. BEFEB 10 SIRUCIUBAL ANALYU;
PPOVIOED UNOEBSEPABAIE COVEI!.

ANTENNA MOUNT AN AtTEK E HOT WITHIN THE SCOPE OF WORK COhlTAINEO IN IHISDRAWINC
1CT. KIS ANADrSG OF MOUN7 70 SUFFOI:! EXCIINO ANO/01? PBOPOSED COMPOHEtnS. tEFEt
10 ANTENNA MOUtnSreuC'nnULANALy;!: PCOVCiEOUMOEBSEFABATECQVEB.

DRIVING DIRECTIONS
BIPtCnOmFBOMAIEIOFFCELOCATEOAT 19B01 ;W 7;NO AVE. TUAUIIN. OB TTO.^

1. HEADE*SITOWA?SW?:NOAV£(10FT]
71?N CTCHT TOWACD SW 7tKD AVE ftSSFT)

3. WKH EIGHT ONTO :W ?;NO *VE (W> FT|
7UBNtEFIA'nHE1STCnOSSSII!EETUmD;W5AC.E^SnD,iMI|

5. 1WN IETT ONTO EW tSTH *VE |0.3 Mlj
COhmNUEOl^TOSV; NYBERC ^T fD^ MI|

7. [KErH£ltl&HTHNCIOMEBCEOtrTOUMVl*IHEBAMPtOFOniUNO(O^M]|
0. MEBOE OHIO H H [Z; Ml)

MCEEXITCTTAIOMETOEONtOOB-^ITNroWAroTIOAPD/SUICETHWY/OCEGOMCOASri'
10, TACEfflEEXFONWE LEFT ONIOU.-IiW/NW SUNSET HWYTCWAroiEASI&E [ia.7MI

It. KEEP POUT AI IHE roBK. FOILOWSIONS FOE U; 1(11/U;;SANO MECCEOMTO UM01 M |13.8
11 7UBN IEFT ONTO Oli.l 04 N (0.3 Ml)
13. WNIEFT ONTO COLUMBIA BEACH IN [O.IM11
14. COnnNUEITBAIOHTOfflOCOl.UMm BEACH ro/EIOOEroiM Mil
IS. 7UBW LtFT ONTO POEC KCOALLRO AttDSm: WILL

(EONTNELEFTIO.SMI)

800-227-2600

NEW BUILD LTE ONLY !C: MRWOR060485
LTE3C:MRWOR065?32
LTE4C:MRWOR065728
LTE5C:MRWQR065743
5G NR 1SR: MRWOR065731
LTE2C:MRWOR065729
USID:316871
FA CODE: 15725074

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
NNEO TElECOMMUMICMIONIfACILItT.

TOWIt/JkKTWH* »W:
lnnALLAHCiNO^IlATEJ IIO'-CTNIOH MONOfOlE (PAN7EO OBEEMI
IKSMLLATIOM CF [1| AIM IWUCHTNING POD

,LLATI&MCiF<A] ATflJPAHELAhfTENHAS
IUSTALLATIOWOFjfj ATKT BEMOI6 CAOtO UNIT: |TOUS)
ItCTALLAHONOFItj AIU PEH MOUNT:
tKSTALLATI&HC^ I] AT&T OC^ ;U POE ^Uf^ E.SOI?'.
IHITALLATIOM OF [3|AT1TV-FBAME*KTEMNAMOUHT:

vWtlrmntWM;
CTALIAII&MOFAMAH.'I ^••Vt.'JS-V KSOOIO, FT.)

TELECOMMUNtCAriON COMPOUtlD LEASE ABEA
KSTALLATION OF AN MU fi'JJ-ViV^T, 6.0- HICH CHAIN LINK
FENCIMCAND r^J-HCH lAro£OWII;£ STCANOS [T'-CT HIGH TOIAL)
frCTALLATIOM OF [I I A1U WAUMN CABINn (WIC] ON
CONCKETE PAD
tCT*LLknONOF[1]MUaiCWOCOIC[LtACl;-UPOENEI?MOI;OH

GONCKETE PAD
IICTALtMIONOF(1)*TnMOAACI>OWEtPANEL
[HJTALLATION Of |]| AW EMEKON PUWEltPUNniACKW/ |S]
wnEPIE;
[tCTALlATION OF pl All,; HY6BID BACKS
?CTMUHONOF(1)AT1JFLK 11 CAB1HH
[HSTALLATION OF [1| AT&T H.FPAMEW/UHUTf EOUIPMIMT
[TOTALLATION OF [I) MNCAM.E6RIOCE
INSTALLATION Of [31 AT!J DC POWEB i [11 ?< PWt F1BEB CABLE
TBUNd
[ICTALLATIOMOf [;i ATiiI [>C1;;UBGE:UPP?E^OIC;
IICTALLA710N OF 181 MET CECWIECS

CTALLATICIN Of |131 ATn CONVECtllE;
[HSTALLWIClN Of [llAUIBASEBAtlDUNB
WAUATION Of (IIMEIGPSANIENNA

CTALLATIDNOf []) WKI FtUEE VAULT
IffiTALLATION of [I) ICAN^FOCUIEt VAULT
tKT*UAnONOF11)ATUFn£CVAUUSLACC10X

[NCTMUHON OF (:) OIFOLES [BYOTHEISJ
[HCTALLATION Of 12) MICKOWAVE ArlTEtlMA; (BY O'HERI)
tSTALLATION Of Pl EQUIPMENT CABINETS |1V OWEK;)

[HST*LIATIONOF(1) 1^-CC ICE BKIDOE (BTOIHEESI
IMCTALLATION Of |]| OPSAMTEMN* [BYOTM£IS|
ItCTAlLATION Of (lia'^r'jia'-ff'CONCBCTEPADIBTOrnEB:!

SHEET INDEX REV.
me SHEET
CENECAIK
C[N [PAL f,

CM
CN-1

W-t
^TEfiEAl SAFETY DAT/

lACECTIFICATIQU

IFHFIAN
ENLABGEOOTEF

DETAIL;.

DETAIL;
DETAIL;

CENCfWOItOCIAIt:
WALE-IN CAdN^ (MCI CETAH;
^MTENNA MOUNT DETAILS
OETAIl;

tmunruN;
[LCCnilCALPAHElSCNCBULEi.SLDC
CPOUMOIHGMOtB.
CtOUNOING r LAN:
GPOUMDlnfC DETAILS

fr PBEPACEOFOt ^

i AT&T
fW ClNOUUMt WKEtE:'. PC:,

ILC pATE.n
ITOOt :W 72ND AVE.. M. 010

7U* LATIN. OR WOU

^5^FRAS7i;ycTUBE

CT69
FOBJCTEVENS

1A75 PETER IBEDALE BO
WAffiENTON. Oli°7121

PARCEL ID: B10170C03901

/T 03/07/13 ItOTCO
"^

^CEif'-0'Air-! 'OKCRIpn&tl J

TITLE SHEET

T-1

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 30 of 65



CT69 FORT STEVENS
LOCB.TED IN THE SOUTMTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 SECTION 17,

TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 10 WEST OF THE WILLAMCTTE MERIDIAN,
CLATSOP COUNTY OREGON

oucmpn.aN a?
ND ITOt BE3UHCH P1KNIOED AT THS TIUE.

TOWER INFORMATION

PHOPD33] TDHIB TffE:

uomnii

pncposm TCKS HOGHT

HDCWTi 130.W

GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES

umuoe

win'-ia^rn
ow *a

Lowcmjcc

m~17W.7B*»
_(N*o_n»_

crouw ELdwnmi

I7.4S FITT
(NAW U)

Or 2°A21

[g^^^^]
^
•I)

»
0

ViaNinrMAP
(NOT TO SCALE)

OEWC * roRHON OF TWiT FROFCKtr inTHIN THE SOUTHWCST 1/4
OF THE Nonnmcsi 1/4 OF SUTION n, TOmsmp a NORm.
mNB: 10 MEST. WJH. aATSOP COUNTY. (IRtCON, UnC mESIEm.T
OF numtlON PUIT mni-ooa uonc numcuuffl.Y BESCTIBED K,
Fuun&

BG3NNNC AT * WNT FTOU tlMCH A FOUND 1-1/4' ALUMNUU
DCK lunnme THE HUnuaaY saurwrtsr coflMTt OF miDi OLC
ISO, SCHS NBRTM IW32'ar UST A cisnfia: OF ^MUB Fttr;

THENCe SOUTH 21'U'li'" 6»ST A [WUNCE OF S0,m] FUT TO *
POUT Fnnu WHICH A FOUND 1-1,*" AUUUNUU BSK (usnwn me
sauncffiT coroiat of samoN IT, SWB soum amnB' EUT
A USWICC OF H24.12 Fm:

THD4CE SOUm WllfW' WCT A DCUNCC OF M.OO Fm:

THDICE NOFim iru'n" NEa' A oismwec or iftw Fm

THDUE ICBTH BTH'W IWT A OEUHO: OF SOOO FEETTO THE
POKT Of BCHNNINC, UINWMIIC SSSS WIUHC FEET. MORE OF
U33.

1. DC PROPOSa; TWtR LEUC CTE WOm HEnCM LiCS
mmt IOKE v. nun u •ime ar UIMUM- FUMO
muftB', BT IME renefui. BiKncmCT uwcauDn- jico<n'
(FEW) AS SHSUI ON RBHI PANEL NUUDI 4100TC03iy,
wrrn HI EfTBsmc cui OF xic 20. mia.

2. NO me nEsouffin pRovmm AT THE TML

i. nmmr wmcEys) BOUNHwf UNCS wa/w asx» uncs
3WN ON TtCSC WlWtNCS *»! umjtATEB mou ROOM
Bxuicm *HO vouuumis Koms umECH, WD DO uor
REPOCSOfT A FUU. SDWUTC OOUNBUtT suFner mou mE
LLISE TWCT BOUNttW SUWCr',

*. INS CnjUmC 13 NOT HiDinm Fon u-a: u k coNimucncw

fFVOItS NOWS

nsnwas SHOWN wjsan wt SBoufC cemNaa mTHB<mii>w.
FHT. TO CO»NDtT TO CHID DCTHNCIS uutnn.T nr 'ntt CBunwm
BCicn or i.oaoomiiu. [LrvmoKS SHOVH HDIEOH ARC two
M. Cmm IB. NTEBNfflOWL FECT.

TKC SUBJECT WE*. NO UNOaKHOUNl UIUIT USUiTUN 3EIMCES
en roams USMCH *>u nuvioin mr stf IANO amias. [r
s me cucnr?/a]NniimiR's msponaDUTr TO VDIIFT •mi:

AT&T

'55 INFRASTRUCTURE

) un ww. anc s»
muc.uCTH
(Ml) tS»-MTl

S&F Land Services

Mt-7B7-OBM

SFTE NAME

FORT ST&/ENS

SITE VISF DATE

02/25/22

SFTE NUMBER
CT69

SITE ADDRESS

1675 PETER tRECALE RD,
WARREMTON. OR 97121

SHEET NAME

SFTE SURVET

DRAFTED / CHECKED BY

SGD / MJF

SHEET NUMBER
1 OF 1

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 31 of 65



PROPOSED AT&T
ANTENNA AREA

REFER TO ANTENNA PLAN &
SCHEDULE ON SHEET A-3

(r]*TtTRIttVAUlT.
l&CtTION Of (Pl ATtT RBEt HLMLP,

^̂s?

PARCEL ID:
810170003901

ZONED: OSI

(E) MCfflC POWEt
7eAN';FOf;MEr)1170TSO.
lOCAIION OF [P] ATtT
pawn p.o.c.

'[) CBAVEl ACCE^

PARCEL ID:
810180000101
ZONED: OS1

tP)ATlT1W-CfTAU
MONOFOU (M[NT(B SlfflMl

PCEPAtEOFOI;

;<—^
AT&T

NEW CINGULAR WICEim PC:,
Lie r*ia~|

19B01 :W 73ND WE., CTE. 3»
TUA LAIN. DC l>'!at£

'^5 INFRASTRUCTURE

CT69

1473 PETER IREDALERD
WAKRENTON,OR07121

PARCEL ID: 61017D30»01

CHECCE&BT; Evt

'r0 \W107tW___\Oa"iCD^

T;EVT

Llccr

-DAl£'-l ' DtSCCIPIION

(r:h»Eti;ni!:

I ENLARGED SITE PLAN
I a COMPOUND PLAN

A-2
COMPOUND PLAN ENLARGED SITE PLAN • 50UJ 1- - SO'-B-

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 32 of 65



City of Warrenton
Planning Department
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250 Warrenton. OR 97146
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Rebecca Sprengeler, Planning Technician 
DATE: May 11, 2023 
SUBJ: Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 

81015C000900 

BACKGROUND: 

Mike Blackwell has submitted a variance request to expand his home beyond the allowed 
nonconforming use expansion maximum. His home is located at 40 NE 5th St in Warrenton and 
is in the I-1 General Industrial zone. New residential uses are not allowed in this zone. The 
current use is nonconforming. Nonconforming uses are allowed to continue, but alterations and 
expansions are restricted by the code to no more than 25% of the floor area of the structure. 
The Blackwells were working through plan review in the Building Department to put an addition 
on the existing structure. However, this was going to be challenging and expensive because of 
the poor soil in this area. Options that were presented to the Blackwells were to potentially 
pursue a rezone to be able to demo and rebuild as an allowed use or apply for a hardship 
variance from the Planning Commission. The time frame for the rezone was significantly longer 
than would meet the applicant’s needs. 

The existing dwelling is a total of 956sf according to County tax records. The applicant proposes 
an addition to the rear of the home, connected by a breezeway. The addition would be two 
stories and 2,376sf total. This is about a 150% increase in the square footage of the existing 
nonconforming use, therefore variance review and approval from the Planning Commission is 
required.  

Surrounding uses include the City of Warrenton Wastewater Treatment Plant to the North, 
Agricultural land to the East and South, and other single family residences and the Alder Manor 
Mobile Home Park to the West.  

5.B

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 33 of 65



Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 2 
 
 
 
Aerial Photography

 
 
 
Zoning (I-1 General Industrial) 

 
 
 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 34 of 65



Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 3 
 
Hydric Soils (present) 

 
 
 
Wetlands (Not affected) 

 
 
 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 35 of 65



Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 4 
 
Flood Zone (Zone X, Area of Minimal Flood Hazard) 

 
 
 

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE:  

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this modification include:  

WMC 16.208.050 TYPE III PROCEDURE (QUASI-JUDICIAL). 
WMC 16.60 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (I-1) DISTRICT 
WMC 16.276 NONCONFORMING USES AND DEVELOPMENT 
WMC 16.272 VARIANCES 

 
Public notices were mailed to affected property owners on April 21, 2023, and published in The Astorian 
on April 29, 2023. No public comments were received as of the date of this report.  

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS: 

WMC 16.60 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (I-1) DISTRICT 
16.60.020 Permitted Uses. 
16.60.030 Conditional Uses. 
STAFF FINDING: The use of the property and existing structure to be expanded is residential in 
nature and is not permitted or conditionally allowed in the I-1 General Industrial zone. Because 
it was built before 1975, the structure qualifies as a non-conforming use under WMC 
16.276.010. 
 
16.60.040 Development Standards. 

H.    Setbacks. The minimum front, side and rear yard setbacks shall be 10 feet. When a 
property abuts a non-industrial zone, the setback shall be as follows: 
 1.     50 feet for buildings and other structures more than 10 feet in height; 
J.      Building Height. The maximum building height shall be 45 feet, except that it may 
be lower under either of the following circumstances: 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 36 of 65

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_4-chapter_16_208-16_208_050
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_2-chapter_16_60?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_272?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_2-chapter_16_60?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276-16_276_010
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276-16_276_010


Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 5 
 

1.     Within 100 feet of a non-industrial zone, where the maximum building 
height shall be the same as the maximum building height in that zone. 
2.     Within the Airport Hazard Overlay Zone, where the maximum building 
height is described by the Airport Hazard Overlay Zone. 

STAFF FINDING: The proposed addition will be 24’ 4” high meeting the maximum height 
standard. The applicant proposes a 68’ setback to the East property line and based upon GIS 
measurements, approximately a 75’ setback to the West property line. The property is over 
100’ from the adjacent residential zones to the West and South. Setbacks for the existing and 
proposed addition are met. The property is outside the airport avigation overlay zone.  
 

 
 
WMC 16.276 NONCONFORMING USES AND DEVELOPMENT 
A nonconforming use or structure was a lawful existing structure or use at the time this Code 
became effective, but which does not conform to some or all of the requirements of this Code. 

A. Continuation. A nonconforming use or structure may be continued. 
STAFF FINDING: According to County records the structure was built in 1930. The development 
code was adopted in 1975. The structure was legally existing at the time of the Warrenton 
Municipal Code adoption and is allowed to continue as a non-conforming use.  
 

B. Expansion or Extension. In case of practical difficulty and unnecessary hardship, the 
Planning Commission may grant a variance for the enlargement or expansion of a 
nonconforming use up to 25% in floor or 10% in land area as was existing on the 
effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter.  

STAFF FINDING: In order to grant an expansion up to 25% in floor area of a non-conforming 
use, the Planning Commission must make findings that is a case of practical difficulty and 
unnecessary hardship. Under the non-conforming use code, the Planning Commission can grant 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 37 of 65

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276


Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 6 
 
an expansion of up to 239sf. The applicants have been working with the city since 2019 to 
expand their current dwelling. This has taken a significant amount of time and money due to 
plan changes and poor soil.  
 

C. Discontinuance. If a nonconforming use is discontinued for a period of 12 months, 
further use of the property shall conform to this Code. 

STAFF FINDING: This will be made a condition of approval.  
 

D. Damage. If a nonconforming structure, or a structure containing a nonconforming 
use, is damaged by any cause, it may continue if damage is limited to no more than 
75% of its fair market value (as indicated by the County Assessor’s records), and if a 
building permit for repair is issued within one year of the damage event. If these 
conditions are not met, any subsequent structure or use of the site shall conform to 
this Code. 

STAFF FINDING: This will be made a condition of approval.  
 
WMC 16.272 VARIANCES 
16.272.020 Criteria. 
Variances to a quantitative requirement of this Code may be granted only if, on the basis of the 
written application, investigation, and evidence submitted by the applicant, findings of fact are 
made by the… Planning Commission (for Class 2 applications) that satisfy the criteria of 
subsections A through F of this section. Prior variances allowed in the neighborhood shall not be 
considered by the granting authority in reaching its decision. A determination of whether the 
standards set forth in this section are satisfied necessarily involves the balancing of competing 
and conflicting interests. Each request shall be considered on its own merits. 

 
A. The hardship was not created by the person requesting the variance; 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: We purchased the property because we liked the two outbuildings, the 
area and the amount of space around them. We also planned on doing an addition to the 
existing house. When we started the permitting process each plan and revision met challenges. 
We have complied with each challenge by changing our house plans, repeatedly and each 
change has drained our building funds that we had set aside.  
STAFF FINDING: The applicant is requesting expansion of the existing dwelling beyond what is 
allowed by the nonconforming use code. A limiting factor is also the poor soil type not being 
able to support improvements to the second story. The dwelling was built in 1930 according to 
County records. The applicant has not indicated the reason for the addition being requested. It 
has been suggested by staff that it would be easier to demolish the current structure and 
rebuild, however the code does not allow the complete replacement of nonconforming uses. 

 
B. The request is necessary to make reasonable use of the property. There will be an 

unreasonable economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the 
request is denied; 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 38 of 65

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_272?view=all


Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 7 
 
APPLICANT RESPONSE: We have already put a substantial financial investment in the property. 
To have to start over with a new property would be financially impossible.  
STAFF FINDING: The applicant currently uses the structure as a residence. If denied, the 
property would be allowed to continue with a nonconforming residential use provided it 
continued to meet the standards of WMC 16.276.010. The economic impact on the applicant 
would be related to funds already expended on the previous plan review and design.  
 

C.     The request will not substantially be injurious to the neighborhood in which the 
property is located. The variance will not result in physical impacts, such as visual, noise, 
traffic or increased potential for drainage, erosion and landslide hazards, beyond those 
impacts that would typically occur with development in the subject zone; 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: There would not be much of a visual impact because the non-attached 
addition would be between two existing buildings. The traffic would not increase because it is 
just our driveway. The drainage will be addressed in accordance with the existing stormwater 
report and guidelines of the geoengineer. (That paper work has already been submitted).  
There is also no danger of landslides or erosion.  
STAFF FINDING: The visual change that would be created by granting the variance would be an 
additional structure on site that would meet the height and setback requirements for the zone. 
The applicant has not indicated that there would be an increased number of vehicle trips; there 
are no increases in the number of residents or dwelling units that would typically generate 
additional vehicle traffic. There would be an increased potential for drainage that would need 
to meet city standards. This would be addressed during plan review. 

 
D.    The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: There are no changes with the existing zoning in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
STAFF FINDING: The WMC has regulations for variance requests that have been reviewed by 
the State for compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. Compliance with the WMC should not 
result in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. However, the Comprehensive Plan calls for this 
area to be zoned as Industrial for the purpose of industrial development. While the code allows 
for the use to continue, the comp plan ultimately calls for an industrial use of the property.  

 
E.     The request is not in conflict with the Development Code. No variance may be 
granted which will result in a use not permitted in the applicable zone or which will 
increase the allowable residential density in any zone with the exception of individual lot 
size reduction; and 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: We are not changing the density in the zone, we are just trying to make 
our home/residence more habitable.  
STAFF FINDING: The request can be approved by findings of fact supporting the non-
conforming use code and the variance criteria. The use is not permitted but is allowed to 
continue. The density of the zone is not a factor here. The lot size is not affected.  

 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 39 of 65



Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 8 
 

F.     Physical circumstance(s) related to the property involved preclude conformance 
with the standard to be varied. 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: The property is unsuited to attach an addition to the existing building. 
This is directly because the soil type requires an extensive buildup and having a mixed 
foundation would cause uneven settling and the structure would fail.  
STAFF FINDING: The site was visited on April 24, 2023. The weather was partly cloudy. There 
was no standing water observed on the site, however the ground was marshy. The applicant 
was previously working with the building department through plan review for a rear addition 
and second story to the existing structure. The additional weight of a second story would not be 
supported with the current foundation and poor soil type. However, there were noticeable site 
characteristics to cause the need for the expansion of the existing structure.  
 

 
 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Suggested Conditions of Approval: 
 

1. If this nonconforming use is discontinued for a period of 12 months, further use of the 
property shall conform to this Code (WMC 16.276.010.C) 

2. If a nonconforming structure, or a structure containing a nonconforming use, is 
damaged by any cause, it may continue if damage is limited to no more than 75% of its 
fair market value (as indicated by the County Assessor’s records), and if a building 
permit for repair is issued within one year of the damage event. If these conditions are 
not met, any subsequent structure or use of the site shall conform to this Code. (WMC 
16.276.010.D) 

 
Recommended Motion: 
 

“I move to approve variance V-23-2 for expansion of residential nonconforming use at 40 NE 5th 
St (Tax lot 81015C000900) by up to 150% of the current structure. This approval is subject to 
findings of fact in the staff report, dated May 11, 2023, testimony, deliberations by the Planning 
Commission and conditions of approval.” 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 40 of 65

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276-16_276_010
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276-16_276_010
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276-16_276_010


Non-Conforming Use Expansion Variance V-23-2: 40 NE 5th St – Taxlot 81015C000900           
Staff Report Page: 9 
 
 
“I move to deny variance V-23-2 for expansion of residential nonconforming use at 40 NE 5th St 
(Tax lot 81015C000900).” 
 
“I move to continue the public hearing for variance V-23-2 to the next regular Planning 
Commission meeting on June 8, 2023.” 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Application 
2. Plans 
3. Public Notices 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 41 of 65



CITY OF WARRENTON
PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

Telephone: 503-861-0920

VARIANCE APPLICATION

To be accompanied by a Site Plan, copy of property deed
and Letter of Authorization, if applicable.

OFFICE USE ONLY

FILE # V-53- ^ FEE $1,350

ZONING DISTRICT 3"-1

RECEIPT #se< qn-

The Variance application process is a method for assuring compliance with the City of Warrenton Comprehensive
Plan and Development Code/ and to ensure wise utilization of natural resources/ and the proper integration of

land uses utilizing appropriate landscaping or screening measures. Please answer the questions as completely as

possible.
•••UN

Legal Description of the Subject Property:Township § /V , Range Vc> vi/ , Section(s) <3 IA/ ^', ^^C^ )£5

Tax Lot(s)

Property street address : }4p /^ €. ^ T^ ^-T^^T .V\/^^^ i^^^ ^/? c?~?^y^

1/we/ the undersigned applicant(s) or authorized agent/ affirm by my/our signature(s) that the information
contained in the foregoing application and associated submissions is true and correct.
APPLICANT:

Printed Name: M{M€ '^JA^H^^T]

Signature:, Date: 3 ~ ,7-^-62-3

. Phone: ^Ot"?^t-K^Cf

Fax: /Y^>^€

/' T I—7'

Address: ^/-T> A/<? -S~ 'T/^ J^T.

City/State/Zip:^^r?<^V7'-0^v 0 K 9 ^ V6

PROPERTY OWNER (if different from Applicant):

Printed Name: A)//<^ &JAC /fO^//

Signature:/7^-7 /^- Date:
/ /^ -^Y-

Address:^ ^\) /^ 6s ^-/ ^7~

^ -/^-•/2 O^T

Phone: S"f^ - ,°6 /"- ^ fz2 9

City/State/Zip: V\ J /W-Yi^v' ^-V 'D U ^'J) ^ Fax:^^4^4^_

^^Ll^k^\ 7y<£y<^.<^
»^ (^^f L k f^^^-f. ff <t-^ y^n^ ;/. ^r^i ^

This application will not be officially accepted until department staff has determined that the application is

completed, the site plan map requirements are met/ and a copy of the deed is included.

Variance Application
October 2018

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 42 of 65



NARRATIVE: Please describe the variance request:

^^ ^. ^ '^ ^-^^^ ^

^^s^J'^il^ k^^ fir^L^- ^t— -/^- ^^yt» ^^^JSL//J^'-IL

A^_^ ^*<" ^.

Standard
Front Yard Setback

Rear Yard Setback

Side Yard Setback

Lot Dimension

Height

Landscaping

Parking

Required Proposed

Variance Application
October 2018

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 43 of 65



SIX VARIANCE CRITERIA
1. The hardship was not created by the person requesting the variance. Please explain.
^Jt;. p(,<..^Y^c// ^-h; pi-cpfr/^ ^i;(^- ,'.L^ /i^/ +^^w^Y'h^f//it.Y-^ r^c' <'t^a a^J ^'^cnnc^s-ffi^ ^pc'.cy,

a^c^,!^^^ L<Jr ^r^icL^^/^n^c.,^f(.tna^htn^T^ ^^^'n. ho^i'. ^^n ^ Y'^^ ^t^^ .-

pCnm(-t;p^ p<\^^r/, C^\h pfflr) cirt^ /'t^^^^L^thi.Ukny^ ^ VYLVZ. Llc-..n^l^J ^'^^ ^«<*A 0,,^,,^^
l^^ ^Ivi-i^,^., C^f[-^<.^v. p^^'\ f^\it^i.^^ ^ a'nJ ^till\ cA'd-^' i\il^ ^rdthfJ ^(.cf hi/i/r/^ p'^fi^

^^ u/r'. hf.^ S\^ ^l /'<-^. ____^_
2. The request 1s necessary to make reasonable use of the property. There will be an unreasonable
economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 1s denied.
U^J tv^Vr. ^ir^t^^ ^'UL/ ^ S-LLA^A'f yK'7<fl ( P<tim'U>./t</t'/)^^»u/j.t IY} t/w pcc^i'-l^. T^

/yjn/'^ 4r, S-k^Y-/ ^iJ^r ^ iU^ fft y^n' ()( o^ct^ ^CL^ \y. f'-^^tnn^l^ <'vn^J^JJf ,

3. The request will not substantially be injurious to the neighborhood in which the property m
Located. The variance will not result in physical impacts, such as visual, noise, traffic or increased
potential for drainage, erosion and landslide hazards, beyond those impacts that would typically occur
with development in the subject zone.
Th<2-^ L^'&LJd r\(7-f lo^._t_TCiu tl ^ r-^.n </-iciuft j {^pA<<^ b^f'/^Vf!^ -/Jif f'|/*>n-c.V^t^^( aJ^^'i^ i^Ci.^

\^^ t^-h.-^n -t ^/;: ^^iT^(t/\^ (iL-nlr/n/Vj^, r^f ^^ii^\^ i.^^'^U nr-t t^^rec.\^f. ht'fnuSt' ;/-/;> ju5l/

OLv^' C^ivf..^lLLf',, ^"/U C'ir(-t;/Ttl^eL .L^Ji}/ ^c. (.uid^^ ^t'r( ;r) ^fCC^^a.^'f^ uj.-t^L^^^ ^x/57'7^^ S^ *./^

^i^hc ^^o(f- ^^^ ^uif/r//n^^ /'F -^v yCt'H^m^er. (F^ p^r^U-^L^ h^'>alrerjr^ .(ji't'n

\^,^.5^-r\^} r^^\~^ i^ ^l-.n i-i^ r/.» n/^.C f.^{a TiJ^fi'^f^ .^ r ^r^^inr\

4. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. Please explain.
-rA^."^ C\r^ /'U? C^Y/^^-. L^r^f 4-;-^ C^^^nq ?-oi/>tf^ in i-{^ ^.^\,-^it/i StU r1

M^ _°' ^
5. The request Is not 1n conflict with the Development Code. No variance may be granted which will
result In a use not permitted in the applicable zone or which will increase the allowable residential
density in any zone with the exception of individual lot size reduction. Please explain.

''yJt- LU'€ iV^ ^ C)w-r^jr^ ^i^ ^^n.5/4^ ; (^ t/-4u /? ^'/ ^ L^'c 61;^^, ]'/sT /-ryi'nq ^-0

YY^C'tk^ Ou^ i\r,vf\^/^^(^f^' ^ . /r^-,'^ ^^lh4^I)lf /

6. Physical circumstance (s) related to the property involved preclude conformance with the standard
to be varied. Please explain. , / / , .
'Tk^ nrc^L-'r^ ,'<i /Li~s/<i/^-/ A^ C{.i-fc\r\h Ctn o^/r'////^1 //;/-/)^ 6'.X/5//na ^mU^n^ /^A,<j

/^ d,Ctt\M^ k^.c'aj'j^cL ±i\ft ^n</ '/L.n/'^ r^c/zy/n'-, C^i ^^/^/isjV'c'. /^/ y^/^/jTClr\J J-uiU i'v\:i _£L

^lJ.XAi^__F/"^Lhc^'^^d_.Ll;r(i:^<y (^^\(i ^/- i{^\^tzi__^jL^^L'j^^^^y-^-^h^ s^i \{F^f^ iui^d^ ./^T/^..

Return Application To: City of Warrenton
Planning and Building Department
PO Box 250, 225 S. Main Street
Warrenton, Oregon 97146

Variance Application
October 2018

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 44 of 65



81015C
CLATSOP COUNTY
SW 1/4 SEC.15 T8N R10WWM

500ft

; -a • 2'

:71 ^ I »

RANCELLEP TAXLOT NUMBERS

480 501 1001 1102 1301
]1 800 11M> 'l300

FOR ADDITIONAL MAPS VlSft OUR WEBSHEAT

www.co.ctatsop.or.us
Thj'3 mpp was prV^UWIS ualm Ctolsop County
fllSda'o. Thoda?t3mtt!nl«maiSliyClat3tif

sly to suppnrt Its govmnmmW oct'vt-iai
CU!TOfl Caunly n not raapwslSilo fw any iwp
snom'.posslbia wlsrso, or inlilntarpictalloa,

PLOT DATE: 12/03/2019

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 45 of 65



Borrower
Property Address
City
Lender/Client

Michael L Blackweil
40 NE 5th St
Warrenton
Essential Mortgage I

legal Description

County Clatsop

.can Service/VA

Map

State OR ZipCodfl 97146

Commencing at the Northwest corner of Tract 1 as shown on the Ptat of G. CLIFFORD BARLOW
ADDITION, recorded as County Survey C-395 and/or Plat Book 9, page 22. Ctatsop County
Records, sairf point being located on the East side of Walnut Street as created by the Plat of
Second Extension of Warrenton recorded in Plat Book 3, pages 20 and 21, Clatsop County
Records;

thence along the North line of said Tract 1. South 66t> 07* 00" East a distance of 126.23 feet to
the point of beginning;

thence continuing along the North line of said Tract 1 , South €6ft 07* 00" East a distance ot
173,68 feet, more or less, to the centerline of Hayes Stough:

thence afong the centerfine of Hayes Sfough the fotlowing courses;
South 09' 51' 17" West a distance of 41.37 feet;
South 37t> 56' 23" West g distance o( 61.85 feet;
South 53° 46( 0-T West a distance of 80.33 feet;
South 27s 28' 53" West a distance of 80.15 feet:
South 42° 20' 41" West a distance of 63.23 feet;
South 73' 06> 21" West a distancs of 92.47 feet;
South 60s 54* 56" West a ctfstance of 100.21 feet to a point on the South line of said Tract 1.
thence along the South line of said Tract 1, North 66' 07' 00n West a distance of 30.95 feet.

more or tess, to a point on (he West line of said Tract 1;
thence along the West line of said Tract 1, North 05° 41' 47" East a distance of 219.28 feel lo a

point;
thence continuing along (he West line of said Tract 1. North 23V 51t 57" East a distance of

121.69 feet to a point;
(hence South 66' 07* OO" East a distance of 126.15 feot to a point:
thence North 23B 54* 17" East a distance of 120.14 feet to the point of beginning: being

situated in the Southeast quarter of Section 16, Township 8 North, Range 10 West of the
Willamette Meridian, in the City of Warrentorit County of Clatsopt State of Oregon.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 46 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 47 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 48 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 49 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 50 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 51 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 52 of 65



  

“Making a difference through excellence of service” 

 

 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Variance V-23-2 

 
APPLICANT:  Mike Blackwell     
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  Michael L Blackwell & Taffy L Blackwell  
  
SUBJECT OF REVIEW: Variance V-23-2 requesting expansion of a non-conforming use 

and variance to exceed the maximum allowed expansion of a non-
conforming use of a residence in the Industrial (I-1) zone. 

 
LOCATION:   40 NE 5th St – Tax lot 81015C000900 
 
APPLICABLE CRITERIA: WMC 16.208.050 TYPE III PROCEDURE (QUASI-JUDICIAL). 
    WMC 16.60 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (I-1) DISTRICT 
    WMC 16.276 NONCONFORMING USES AND DEVELOPMENT 
    WMC 16.272 VARIANCES 
 
DIGITAL FILE: https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/ced/page/applications-

pending-administrative-decision 
 
HEARING DATE:  May 11, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 
     Warrenton City Hall, 225 S Main Avenue, Warrenton, OR 97146 
 
HOW TO PARTICIPATE: Interested persons are invited to submit written comments to the 
Planning Department at Warrenton City Hall, PO Box 250, Warrenton, OR 97146 or by email to 
planning@ci.warrenton.or.us. In-person testimony can be given signing a comment card at the 
meeting or sending a message to the meeting host if attending virtually.  
 
Failure to raise an issue in person, or by letter at the hearing, or failure to provide statements or 
evidence sufficient to afford the decision-maker an opportunity to respond to the issue, means 
that an appeal based on that issue cannot be filed with the State Land Use Board of Appeals. A 
copy of the application, all documents and evidence submitted by or for the applicant, and the 
applicable criteria and standards can be reviewed at Warrenton City Hall at no cost and that 
copies shall be provided at a reasonable cost. A copy of the City’s staff report and 
recommendation to the hearings body shall be available for review at no cost at least seven days 
before the hearing, and that a copy shall be provided on request at a reasonable cost. 
 
NOTICE TO MORTGAGEE, LIENHOLDER, VENDOR, OR SELLER: The City of Warrenton 
Development Code requires that if you receive this notice it shall be promptly forwarded to the 
purchaser. 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 53 of 65

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_4-chapter_16_208-16_208_050
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_2-chapter_16_60?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_276
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_5-chapter_16_272?view=all
https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/ced/page/applications-pending-administrative-decision
https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/ced/page/applications-pending-administrative-decision
mailto:planning@ci.warrenton.or.us


  

“Making a difference through excellence of service” 

 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION: Please contact the Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler at 
503-861-0920 x103 or rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us. 
 
MAILED:  April 21, 2023 
 
 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 54 of 65

mailto:rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us


OWNER_LINE OWNER_LL_1 OWNER_LL_2 STREET_ADD CITY STATE ZIP_CODE
Blackwell Michael L Blackwell Taffy L PO Box 515 Warrenton, OR 97146
Gilliam Richard Henry Gilliam Twyla Kay 390 NW Birch Ct Warrenton, OR 97146
Glarum Nancy E PO Box 116 Warrenton, OR 97146
Irvine Eric 380 NW Birch Ct Warrenton, OR 97146
Parker Darren S 36 NE 5th St Warrenton, OR 97146
Warren George W Warren Doris L Warren Family Living Trust PO Box 1147 Warrenton, OR 97146

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 55 of 65



Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 56 of 65



ORDINANCE NO. 12XX 

Introduced By All Commissioners 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING WARRENTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 16, 

DEVELOPMENT CODE, DIVISION 1 – DEFINITIONS, DIVISION 3 DESIGN 

STANDARDS, AND DIVISION 4 APPLICATIONS AND REVIEW PROCEDURES TO 

CREATE STANDARDS FOR SHIPPING CONTAINERS IN WARRENTON 

Section 1. Amend the Warrenton Municipal Code Section 16.XX to read as follows: 

16.12.010 Definitions
Shipping container. A unit originally used for the transport, shipping, or hauling of materials or
goods by land, sea, or air; capable of being moved or mounted by rail, truck, or boat. This
definition includes steel sea or oceangoing containers marked with the American Bureau of
Shipping’s emblem or meeting the International Standard Organization’s standards which can 
be detached from a trailer, chassis or frame, and which were formerly used for transporting sea
or oceangoing cargo. This definition includes the terms “portable moving/storage 
unit/container/pod” and “cargo/oceangoing/transport container.” In addition, this definition 
applies to any structure designed to imitate the look of a shipping container.

16.XX SHIPPING CONTAINERS

16.XX.XXX Purpose.
The purpose of these standards is to establish regulations to limit the use of storage containers
to avoid unsightly conditions and degradation of community character. The goal is to reduce or
eliminate the presence of shipping containers within residential zones and view from the public
right-of-way. This section also allows for temporary and/or ongoing use of shipping containers
City-wide, subject to certain design, screening, and placement requirements.

16.XX.XXX Applicability.
Shipping containers located on any property within the City of Warrenton shall comply with the
regulations set forth in this chapter.

16.XX.XXX Shipping containers as storage facilities or empty structures.
A. Shipping containers as defined in WMC 16.12.010 are permitted within all zones (except

R-40, R-10, R-M, RH), pursuant to the regulations set forth below.

B. All containers shall:

1. Be used as a storage facility, or placed as an empty structure, appurtenant to the
primary use; such primary use being situated in an enclosed adjoining building;

2. Be placed on concrete, asphalt, or level, compacted, hard surface at all times;

3. Be painted so as to blend in with the buildings to which they are associated;

4. Not be visible to the motoring public or from residential neighborhoods adjacent
to the property where located unless other measures are employed to mitigate
the visual impacts of such containers;

7.C

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 57 of 65



 

 

5. Abide by all setback requirements applicable to the zone in which they are 
located; 

 
6. The shipping container must comply with the site and building design regulations 

identified in the underlying zone including use of materials, screening, and 
landscaping; and 

 
7. On a case-by-case basis, the Community Development Director may allow for 

flexibility in site and building design regulations if the underlying design 
regulations in a zone conflict with the shipping container regulations. 

 
C. Only one shipping container may be permitted per site. 

 
D. Shipping containers shall not be stacked. 

 
16.XX.XX Exceptions for temporary placement of shipping containers in residential zones  
A temporary permit for the placement of one shipping container per residential lot may be 
issued once in a calendar year, temporarily (see WMC 16.240.010.C) for a maximum of 6 
months within residential zones (R-40, R-10, R-M, RH) only, for the purposes of temporarily 
storing or shipping personal property in association with moving or property improvement. 
 

A. Temporary shipping containers must be placed on the designated driveway of a 
residential lot; 
 

B. Temporary shipping containers may not be placed within the public right-of-way, and 
may not be placed in such a manner as to obstruct or impair the free and full use of the 
sidewalk or street by the public, or obstruct the view of pedestrians or users of vehicles 
thereon or interfere with the wires, poles or fixtures lawfully maintained thereon; 
 

C. Temporary shipping containers shall be at least three feet away from the residential 
structure, and shall allow for at least five feet of clear access on one side or the other 
between the structure and the property line.  
 

16.XX.XXX Exceptions for placement of shipping containers on construction sites in 
conjunction with an active building permit. 
A temporary permit for the placement of shipping container(s) may be issued in conjunction with 
an active building permit for a construction site in all zones.  
 

A. The temporary shipping container permit will be valid until the building permit expires or 
is finaled;  
 

B. Temporary shipping containers must be removed before the expiration or final approval 
of the associated active building permit; 
 

C. Temporary shipping containers may not be placed within the public right-of-way, and 
may not be placed in such a manner as to obstruct or impair the free and full use of the 
sidewalk or street by the public, or obstruct the view of pedestrians or users of vehicles 
thereon or interfere with the wires, poles or fixtures lawfully maintained thereon; 
 

D. All temporary shipping containers must be placed on the construction site associated 
with the active building permit; 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 58 of 65



 

 

 
E. All temporary shipping containers must be placed a minimum of five feet away from all 

adjacent property lines and public rights-of-way; 
 

F. Temporary shipping containers shall not be stacked; 
 

G. Temporary shipping containers must be secured at nighttime and maintained in good 
condition.  

 
16.XX.XXX Existing violations – Resolution time frame. 
All property owners within the City, who are currently in violation of the regulations set forth in 
this chapter, shall have 120 calendar days from the effective date of the ordinance codified in 
this chapter to bring their properties into full compliance with the regulations set forth in this 
chapter. After this time period, violations of this chapter shall be enforced in conjunction with this 
section and Chapter 16.16 Enforcement. 
 
16.XX.XXX Conflicts with existing code sections. 
In the occasion a conflict exists between the regulations of this chapter and other code or 
ordinance sections of the Warrenton Municipal Code, the terms and provisions of this chapter 
shall take precedence.  
 
16.XX.XXX Shipping containers used as permanent structures. 
Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the use of a shipping container or a similar container from 
being utilized as a permanent structure provided, that such structure complies with all applicable 
Building Codes, City regulations, and City design or development standards, as applicable.  
 
16.XX.XXX Enforcement. 
Enforcement procedures and penalties resulting from violations of this chapter shall be 
administered pursuant to Chapter 16.16 Enforcement under the administration of the 
Community Development Director. 

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 59 of 65



5/4/23, 8:13 AM Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To

https://www.planning.org/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/?utm_campaign=Planning maga… 1/6

Home (/)   >  Knowledge Center (/knowledgecenter/)   >  APA Publications (/publications/)   >  Planning Magazine (/planning/)   >


(/) Join (/join/)

Log In (/login/?next=/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-
place-to-come-home-to/)


MENU

Search

PLANNING MAGAZINE

Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a
Place to Come Home To

How the local leader uses partnerships, missing middle infill, and the Housing Supply Accelerator to put more roofs over more heads.

SHARE THIS ARTICLE

INNOVATIONS (/PLANNING/SECTION/INNOVATIONS/) HOUSING

Mayor Woodards has partnered with APA and the National League of Cities to work together to inspire housing supply change. Photo
courtesy of the city of Tacoma.

May 2, 2023

Enter keyword or phrase

8.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 60 of 65

https://www.planning.org/
https://www.planning.org/knowledgecenter/
https://www.planning.org/publications/
https://www.planning.org/planning/
https://www.planning.org/
https://www.planning.org/join/
https://www.planning.org/login/?next=/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/
https://www.planning.org/planning/section/Innovations/


5/4/23, 8:13 AM Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To

https://www.planning.org/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/?utm_campaign=Planning maga… 2/6

By LINDSAY R. NIEMAN

Like many communities across the country, Tacoma, Washington, faces a housing supply challenge.

Less than an hour from Seattle by train, the city expects 127,000-plus new residents by 2040 (https://www.theurbanist.org/2023/01/31/2023-may-be-

the-year-tacomas-housing-policy-grows-up/) — an increase of more than half of its current population, which already feels the acute financial pains of a

housing shortage.

"Roughly 40 percent of Tacoma residents are paying more than 30 percent of their income for housing costs, some well over that amount," Mayor

Victoria Woodards reported in her 2022 State of the City address (https://www.kiro7.com/news/south-sound-news/tacoma-mayors-state-city-

highlights-housing-crisis-rising-crime-amid-pandemic/PFUURXP6WRGMBF2YDYUS4VQFCI/). To help lower those costs, her administration is

boosting housing production through targeted interventions like Home in Tacoma (https://www.theurbanist.org/2023/01/31/2023-may-be-the-year-

tacomas-housing-policy-grows-up/) and the 27-point Affordable Housing Action Strategy

(https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/City_Managers_Office/affordable_housing_action_strategy), adopted in 2018 to create

6,000 new housing units over 10 years, among other goals.

As president of the National League of Cities (NLC) (https://www.nlc.org/), Woodards has also partnered with the American Planning Association

(/blog/9266611/national-experts-join-the-housing-supply-accelerator-to-guide-meaningful-action/) to launch the Housing Supply Accelerator

(/housing-supply-accelerator/), a national campaign to improve local capacity, identify critical solutions, and speed reforms that enable communities and

developers to work together to produce, preserve, and provide a diverse range of quality housing.

"At the end of the day, we all want housing, and we all want the right kind of housing for the people who live in our communities," Woodards says. "We

really have to use those relationships to find out what the best practices are across the country if we're going to solve this issue."

Planning sat down with the mayor to learn about Tacoma's strategy to make housing more abundant and affordable, which innovative approaches she's

tracking across the country, and where planners can help elected officials build more housing. The following interview has been edited for length and

clarity.

The truth is that by investing in housing, the payoff for an elected official is the fact that everyone who works in
their city or wants to live in their city has a place to call home.

PLANNING: Why did you decide to make housing so central to your work with the NLC?

WOODARDS: As president, you get to decide what you want to focus on for the year. For me, it was very clear that housing needed to be one of those

areas, especially because of what I see happening in my city. As I talked to mayors, council members, and elected leaders across this country, I found that

everybody is dealing with some kind of crisis around housing, whether it's affordability, accessibility, or attainability. Housing is a basic need, and when

people don't have a place to live, it plays out in so many ways. I look at my own city, at the amount of people facing homelessness — the only way we're

truly going to solve some of our communities' issues is through housing.

I was so excited to know that we were already talking with APA about a potential partnership. The idea that we will be able to leverage the expertise of

all of our cities (https://www.nlc.org/initiative/housing-supply-accelerator/), towns, and villages with the expertise of planners from across America to

look at who's doing it well, who needs to have just a few more ideas, who needs to tweak their strategy just a little bit, who can't figure it out at all and

needs help. To have all of these experts at the table, all of our partners — who, in some instances and cities, don't necessarily even work together, right?

We're not always best friends with our development community, because we're the ones who say how they can build, where they can build. Sometimes,

those relationships are strained. But the reality is, we can't solve this issue alone. We need all of our partners, whether that's organizations like APA or

rental organizations or development organizations or realtor organizations.

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 61 of 65

https://www.theurbanist.org/2023/01/31/2023-may-be-the-year-tacomas-housing-policy-grows-up/
https://www.kiro7.com/news/south-sound-news/tacoma-mayors-state-city-highlights-housing-crisis-rising-crime-amid-pandemic/PFUURXP6WRGMBF2YDYUS4VQFCI/
https://www.theurbanist.org/2023/01/31/2023-may-be-the-year-tacomas-housing-policy-grows-up/
https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/City_Managers_Office/affordable_housing_action_strategy
https://www.nlc.org/
https://www.planning.org/blog/9266611/national-experts-join-the-housing-supply-accelerator-to-guide-meaningful-action/
https://www.planning.org/housing-supply-accelerator/
https://www.nlc.org/initiative/housing-supply-accelerator/


5/4/23, 8:13 AM Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To

https://www.planning.org/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/?utm_campaign=Planning maga… 3/6

We've all got to be at the table together because, at the end of the day, we all want housing, and we all want the right kind of housing for the people who

live in our communities. I believe that's what developers want. I believe that's what realtors want. And I certainly know that as elected officials, that's

what we want for the people who call our cities home. I truly believe that when we work more closely together, that's when we're able to make real

change.

PLANNING: How is your administration taking steps to address housing gaps locally?

WOODARDS: Five years ago, we launched our Affordable Housing Action Strategy

(https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/City_Managers_Office/affordable_housing_action_strategy), which has 27 detailed points

about what we can do as a municipality to actually increase housing production and affordability in our community. Part of that strategy is what we're

calling Home in Tacoma (https://www.cityoftacoma.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=180033). We've just completed phase one, and now we're going into

phase two. Phase one took almost two years to present to the council, and we passed it because our planning department engaged not only in innovation

and using data to decide where growth makes sense, but because they also did a lot of outreach with people who live in our city, people who build in our

city, and people who work in our city.

 

We made sure that we had everybody's voice at the table to match with the data we have to say, "this is what makes sense for Tacoma." Rather than just

rule out single-family-only zoning across the whole city, we looked in areas that could handle density, so that when you're building, it makes sense. Like

a corridor where there's access to transportation, where there are already amenities like a grocery store or a bank — the things needed in order to really

be a dense community. Phase one was so thorough and really took into account a lot of people's opinions and a lot of data. I'm looking for phase two to

do that, and that will come before the council in 2023.

PLANNING: What are some of the most innovative housing solutions you're seeing?

WOODARDS: Tacoma has fully embraced missing middle housing, and we're doing that in a number of ways. Sometimes that means building smaller:

duplexes and triplexes and accessory dwelling units. It doesn't change the character of the neighborhood, but it allows for more people to live there. A

senior who's having problems affording their basic mortgage every month can build an ADU in the back of their home, and a young person who's

City of Tacoma Affordable Housing Action StrategyCity of Tacoma Affordable Housing Action Strategy

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 62 of 65

https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/City_Managers_Office/affordable_housing_action_strategy
https://www.cityoftacoma.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=180033
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=jquktu5nOUk


5/4/23, 8:13 AM Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To

https://www.planning.org/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/?utm_campaign=Planning maga… 4/6

getting out of college, who still wants to stay in the community that they've grown up in, can have an affordable place to live. So it does two things: It

gives that young person a place to live, but it also helps that senior stay in their home.

A lot of cities are addressing this too through the American Rescue Plan Act — and the sheer number of dollars that people have spent shows that

there's a housing crisis. Cities have spent $16 billion on over 1,200 projects that will address affordable housing in their community. Boston invested $9

million as part of a $47 million acquisition (https://www.boston.com/real-estate/real-estate/2022/10/13/why-the-city-helped-fund-a-47-million-real-

estate-deal-in-east-boston/) for 36 multifamily buildings in East Boston. In Milwaukee, they budgeted $15 million

(https://www.jsonline.com/story/news/local/milwaukee/2023/04/24/milwaukee-vacant-foreclosed-homes-will-be-renovated-for-sale/70134914007/) to

focus on foreclosed properties. They are actually going to put 150 foreclosed properties back on the tax rolls, which then gives people a place to live. So

we're getting creative about how to use the limited funding that we get. But we also have to make sure that we're continuing to tell our stories, so that

we get additional funding opportunities to address affordable housing in our communities.

PLANNING: You're heading into an update of the city's comprehensive plan, One Tacoma

(https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/planning_and_development_services/planning_services/one_tacoma__comprehensive_plan).

How does that factor into your housing strategy?

WOODARDS: You can't just wake up one day and say, "We want to build more affordable housing." It takes a little bit more than that. The

comprehensive plan helps us not just design for today, but also think about how we're designing for tomorrow. It helps us decide the kind of future we

want to build, what we want Tacoma to look like and feel like. I think that's really important. None of us knew that something like COVID was going to

hit our communities, so you've got to be able to go back and update.

That's the great role of planners: They see the change every day. It's important to make sure that they're leading and guiding us, saying, "Hey, I see this

around the corner." That is really the opportunity we have with our planning departments when we empower them. We rely on planners for their

information and their innovation because they're the experts, they're on the front lines, and it's because they're engaged that they can share with us

when it's time to change.

We rely on planners for their information and their innovation because they're the experts, they're on the front
lines, and it's because they're engaged that they can share with us when it's time to change.

PLANNING: When it comes to reforming land use regulations, how can planners help position elected officials for success?

WOODARDS: Number one: engagement. They can invite the community in to make their voices be heard. They have that expertise that allows them

to say, "Okay, this might sound really good and look really good, but at the end of the day, is it really feasible?" And they bring the best practices. We're

here with planners all in the same room together, learning from one another. That's the greatest thing about some of this work we do: You don't have to

be the person who knows it all. You just have to be able to pick up the phone and have other people that you can call on who will help you understand it.

And then there's facilitation. Planners can lead the conversations. There's nothing better than a planner who can speak planning, but then also translate

that to the community so that they can understand it. And then comprehensive thinking. You can't just launch a plan or an idea or an initiative and not

think about what other plans are on the table. What else have we done? What else have we learned? Being able to have that wide view of all the things

that are happening is incredibly important.

PLANNING: What do elected leaders stand to gain by supporting long-term investments in housing and planning?

WOODARDS: The truth is that by investing in housing, the payoff for an elected official is the fact that everyone who works in their city or wants to

live in their city has a place to call home. The importance of this conversation for me is making sure that every kid has a roof over their head, that every

parent who gets up and goes to work every single day has a place to come home. It's about that police officer or that firefighter or that teacher or that

server or that nurse, and that the community that they work in and contribute to cares enough to make sure, at the end of the day, that they have a place

to be safe and a place to continue to want to achieve their dreams. So selfishly, for me, that's what it's all about: the people who call our community

home or want to call our community home.
Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 63 of 65

https://www.boston.com/real-estate/real-estate/2022/10/13/why-the-city-helped-fund-a-47-million-real-estate-deal-in-east-boston/
https://www.jsonline.com/story/news/local/milwaukee/2023/04/24/milwaukee-vacant-foreclosed-homes-will-be-renovated-for-sale/70134914007/
https://www.cityoftacoma.org/government/city_departments/planning_and_development_services/planning_services/one_tacoma__comprehensive_plan


5/4/23, 8:13 AM Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To

https://www.planning.org/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/?utm_campaign=Planning maga… 5/6

It is about climate change. It is about infrastructure. It is about addressing long term inequities. But behind that long list of things, it's about a person

who is trying the best they can with all the tools they have to support themselves. A place to call home is a great way to show them that they are truly

cared for and that they are wanted and needed.

RECOMMENDED ARTICLES

Lindsay Nieman is APA’s senior editor.

SHARE THIS ARTICLE

INNOVATIONS

5 Practical Zoning Hacks for Missing Middle Housing (/planning/2022/winter/5-practical-zoning-
hacks-for-missing-middle-housing/)

March 21, 2022
INNOVATIONS

Boise Increases Affordable Housing Stock through Zoning Reform
(/planning/2022/summer/boise-increases-affordable-housing-stock-through-zoning-reform/)

Aug. 29, 2022
INNOVATIONS

Struggling Hotel Becomes Housing for People Experiencing Homelessness
(/planning/2022/winter/struggling-hotel-becomes-housing-for-people-experiencing-
homelessness/)

Jan. 13, 2022
VOICES

Nithya Raman Tackles Housing Insecurity Through Land Use Policy (/planning/2022/fall/nithya-
raman-tackles-housing-insecurity-through-land-use-policy/)

Oct. 27, 2022

SIGN UP FOR PLANNING EMAILS

Receive Planning featured articles and recent content in your inbox

Subscribe
(/myapa/contactpreferences/update/)

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 64 of 65

https://www.planning.org/planning/2022/winter/5-practical-zoning-hacks-for-missing-middle-housing/
https://www.planning.org/planning/2022/summer/boise-increases-affordable-housing-stock-through-zoning-reform/
https://www.planning.org/planning/2022/winter/struggling-hotel-becomes-housing-for-people-experiencing-homelessness/
https://www.planning.org/planning/2022/fall/nithya-raman-tackles-housing-insecurity-through-land-use-policy/
https://www.planning.org/myapa/contactpreferences/update/


5/4/23, 8:13 AM Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To

https://www.planning.org/planning/2023/spring/mayor-victoria-woodards-is-making-tacoma-a-place-to-come-home-to/?utm_campaign=Planning maga… 6/6

  (https://www.facebook.com/AmericanPlanningAssociation)   (https://www.youtube.com/user/AmericanPlanningAssn)   (https://twitter.com/APA_Planning)

  (http://instagram.com/americanplanningassociation)   (https://www.linkedin.com/company/24456/)

DOWNLOAD PLANNING MAGAZINE

Access the most recent issue. Download the digital version now.

Log in to download
(https://www.planning.org/publications/document/9266049/)


Back to Top

  Log In (/login/?next=/) Contact Us (/customerservice/) Privacy Policy (/apaataglance/privacy.htm)

© 2022 APA. All Rights Reserved (/apaataglance/copyright.htm) | Privacy Policy (https://planning.org/privacy/) | Advertise (/advertise/)

Planning Commission Packet May 11, 2023 Page 65 of 65

https://www.facebook.com/AmericanPlanningAssociation
https://www.youtube.com/user/AmericanPlanningAssn
https://twitter.com/APA_Planning
http://instagram.com/americanplanningassociation
https://www.linkedin.com/company/24456/
https://www.planning.org/publications/document/9266049/
https://www.planning.org/login/?next=/
https://www.planning.org/customerservice/
https://www.planning.org/apaataglance/privacy.htm
https://www.planning.org/apaataglance/copyright.htm
https://planning.org/privacy/
https://www.planning.org/advertise/

	1 PC Agenda 05.11.23 Revised
	3.A PC Minutes 2023.04.13
	5.A CUP-23-2 Ft Stevens Wireless Communication Facility
	5.B V-23-2 Staff Report
	V-23-2 Plans.pdf
	HPSC0001
	HPSC0002
	HPSC0003
	HPSC0004
	HPSC0005
	HPSC0006


	7.C Ordinance No. 12XX Shipping Container Standards DRAFT (001)
	8. Mayor Victoria Woodards Is Making Tacoma a Place to Come Home To



